Faculty Senate Minutes May 6, 2013 McCormick Room

Faculty Senate Members Present:

Kris Bartanen, Bradford Dillman (chair), Kathryn Ginsberg, Zaixin Hong, Judith Kay, Alisa Kessel, Brendan Lanctot, Amanda Mifflin, Ann Putnam, Elise Richman, Maria Sampen, Mike Segawa, Shirley Skeel, Amy Spivey, Ariela Tubert, Nila Wiese.

Guests:

Jane Carlin, Denise Despres, Tatiana Kaminsky, Diane Kelley, Seth Weinberger, Peter Wimberger.

Call to order: Chair Dillman called the meeting to order at 4:03pm.

Approval of Minutes:

M/S/P to accept minutes from April 22 with minor corrections.

Library, Media, and Information Systems (LMIS) Committee Final Report:

Denise Despres, LMIS Committee Chair, presented the final report (see attachment). Jane Carlin (from LMIS) was also in attendance to discuss the archives project.

Despres indicated that the LMIS committee's initial charges did not include FERPA with respect to increasing use of technologies. However, committee members agreed that they should take on FERPA issues as a new charge. Concerns were raised about the infringement on student privacy. The committee discussed ways to make faculty more familiar with FERPA and to encourage use of the resources available on campus to assist them with compliance.

Kay congratulated the committee on the Printgreen initiative and wondered whether the limit of 750 prints per student per year could be reduced even further. Carlin indicated that the idea was to start with a generous amount and to re-evaluate as needed. Despres noted that most students are not reaching the 750 limit.

Despres noted the section of the report pertaining the Optimize Puget Sound report to LMIS. She mentioned that Travis Nation encouraged faculty to let him know what is not working so that it can be added to the list of things to fix.

Carlin highlighted that the archives and special collection space is the result of work that has been ongoing since her arrival at Puget Sound. She noted that Puget Sound was the only college among our Northwest peers that did not have a special collections space. The library applied for funding and was able to create a special archivist position occupied by Katie Henningsen starting this past fall. The library and the committee have been working on a plan to update the space so that it makes a strong contribution to the inspirational spaces on campus. The idea is that it will be an attractive space providing opportunity for hands on research and study space. The plan is to allow people to engage both with the original materials and digital versions of them. The archives already provide an opportunity for student involvement: there are 9 student volunteers during the academic year and a summer archives fellowship is on its second year. There is also a working group of faculty to provide a strong basis for the use of the archives in curricular needs.

Despres indicated that Carlin will be meeting with President Thomas to discuss the possibility of funding for the project. There are a number of faculty (like Nancy Bristow and Katherine Smith) who have been involved on the project but they indicated that they would like to count with senate support. Carlin added that the current facilities are inadequate. Although they are in the very beginning stages, the plan is to empty some of the shelving on second floor so that new rooms could be created holding the displays and electronic resources. The space would be fulfilling a need for a reflective environment in the humanities and fine arts with the materials providing part of the inspiration. There would also be classrooms and dynamic research space.

Kay said that she would speak in favor of it. She mentioned how documents about the slave experience, for example, make issues alive for students. She emphasized how such resources can enhance teaching. Despres mentioned that there are primary materials in the collection which nobody has done research on. They provide great opportunities for student research. For example, we have a variety of Northwest documents, like the Abby Hill collection. Carlin mentioned the Japanese internment documents and opportunities to pursue projects in digital humanities so as to keep up with our peers. Sampen indicated that the space would help to fulfill the request heard at the previous senate meeting from the student life committee for more quiet spaces in campus. Despres mentioned that Whitman has 3 archivists. She also pointed out that science students have great spaces to study in while humanities students don't.

Dillman request further information on the FERPA charge and Despres replied that Cindy Riche had noticed some serious problems and lack of regulation. The issue is not so much about letters of recommendation but about student papers and grades stored in private cloud servers (Dropbox, Google, etc.)

M/S/P to receive the report. Received unanimously with no objections.

Curriculum Committee Final Report

Tatiana Kaminsky, Curriculum Committee Chair, presented the final report (see attachment).

Kaminsky acknowledged the members of the committee for their efforts, as they had a lot of work this year. They completed 12 department/programs reviews, they continued with the ongoing assessment of the core curriculum, they approved 73 SSI course proposals, 6 connections course proposals, and more. Nonetheless, they have no unfinished business left but it was a year of hard work for all members of the committee.

Kessel stated that the intention behind the charge regarding reviewing the approval of core courses that are taught abroad was meant to provide a clear understanding between committees about who approves what (core courses are approved by CC; international programs by IEC). Wimberger replied that this is in fact the case: courses are approved by the curriculum committee, study abroad programs by the IEC.

Kay asked whether some Connections courses could be offered at the sophomore level. Kaminsky replied that it would be a good idea to form a working group along the lines of the SSI working group composed of people who teach Connections courses. She noted that serious enough questions came up in connection with the Connections core review meriting a more in-depth study by faculty from multiple departments. Perhaps a group could also look at the core as a whole. From the responses they received to the Connections core survey, they gathered that some faculty feel strongly in favor of Connections courses while others hate them.

Dillman noted that the committee spent a lot of time reviewing changes to SSI courses. He asked whether they were mostly just approved or whether the review process proved useful. Kaminsky replied that at first a lot of proposals were sent back for revisions but that things started going more smoothly once Priti Joshi and Eric Orlin were enlisted to assist faculty with the proposals.

Dillman wondered about the concern about the number of minors that are being proposed. Does the committee think that there are too many? Kaminsky replied that since they approved two new minors at the end of the year they wondered whether this is something that needs to be considered. She noted that this could be a charge for next year but that it is not the most important one. More important are issues regarding the SSI requirement for transfer students and whether Bachelor of Science degrees should be awarded or only Bachelor of Arts degrees. The committee could look into what other similar liberal arts colleges are doing; do they award Bachelor of Science degrees? Also on the list of important charges is whether the limit of 9 courses per major is still appropriate given that it was

created 30 years ago. Another charge concerns internship credits and whether students should have to pay for summer tuition for internships. Bartanen noted that the BA/BS distinction was raised by our accreditors so we'll need to address this issue before they come back in two years.

Dillman noted that five departmental reviews were deferred and asked about the reasons. Kaminsky mentioned that each of them had their own individual reasons. For example, Neuroscience just got a new chair this year.

M/S/P to receive the report plus commendation for the hard work of the committee members. Received unanimously with no objections.

International Education Committee Final Report

Diane Kelley and Peter Wimberger, co-chairs of the International Education Committee, presented the final report (see attachment.)

Kelley explained that she was chair of the committee in the fall and Wimberger in the spring. Most of the time in the fall semester was spent reviewing programs. As they reviewed the programs, the issue of costs was brought up but the committee members did not realize at the time that the cost of the programs was such a big issue. She thought that in the future costs are likely to play a role in the decision of which programs to accept.

Kelley mentioned that the committee approved and eliminated programs. She indicated that it may seem odd that they were approving programs when the overall goal is to reduce the number of programs but she noted that the ones that got approved had strong students or faculty support. She mentioned that the Alcalá (Spain) program, for example, is cheap and it was highly recommended by several faculty members. She also indicated that summer programs provide a cost efficient way for students to study abroad.

Wimberger noted that in the spring semester they spent a lot of time discussing the approval process. They communicated with the office of institutional research regarding study abroad surveys. He noted that it is hard to assess the impact of study abroad as there isn't enough data available indicating what students are learning other than language skills.

Wimberger noted that a fall event is being organized in order to increase the integration of the study abroad experience with the on-campus experience. This event will include students returning to campus after having studied abroad and students planning to go abroad. Also in the plans is requiring students to present any research done abroad upon their return to campus. He indicated that some science students already do this in poster

sessions. These are some ideas that the committee has been entertaining so as to better integrate the study abroad experience into the curriculum and campus events.

Wimberger indicated that they considered some issues regarding short-term faculty-led trips. For summer programs, do students have to pay tuition plus program costs? If so, then it often becomes overly expensive and students won't go. He mentioned that some schools waive tuition and just have student pay for program fees.

Segawa noted that there may be some data on learning outcomes from the Student Life committee. About three years ago, they discussed the question of the value of the study abroad experience. He said that Nick Kontogeorgopoulos led discussions about what we want students to learn abroad and what they actually learn. There was a survey administered a few times and some of that data may be available even if the survey is not administered anymore. The survey could also be administered again. Wimberger noted that they considered data from senior surveys but not from that other survey.

Kessel mentioned that the sexual assault working group was concerned about sexual assault issues for students going abroad. She wondered whether this is something that the IEC could look into. Kelley mentioned that the safety of the programs is taken into consideration when approving programs. Kessel asked whether there is specific information about sexual violence. Wimberger said that the Office of International Programs has the relevant information about safety. He mentioned that he knows that one program was put on probation, for example, because of sexual assault issues. He also noted that part of the pre-departure information given to students has to do with safety and that John Hickey looks at the safety of the programs and takes some countries off the list because of safety concerns.

Bartanen asked if the providers have to comply with the Clery act. Segawa said that they don't need to provide crime statistics but indicated that the third party providers are good at responding to situations as they arise. He noted that in cases where something has happened, there has been good response. He mentioned that students put themselves at most risk when drinking but that there are good protocols already in place to educate students about the risks they face when drinking. Wimberger emphasized that the programs have a lot of experience. The two that he visited have students do safety briefings when they come in and they also highlight the risks students face while drinking. Wimberger wondered whether students are less safe while abroad. Is there any data on this? Segawa said that there was no data but the sample size is very small so it is hard to tell. Kelley indicated that it is important to figure out how to prevent these problems. Segawa mentioned that the issue of sexual assault could be mentioned as part of the preparation given to students before they a go abroad. Kelley said that the committee would welcome the charge if the senate wanted them to look more into this.

Putnam said that a student in one of her classes wrote an essay about her experience while studying abroad. She mentioned that a woman had connected her with a Thai massage salon where the student was raped. The student said that she did not report it to anyone. When she told her boyfriend, she broke up with her so she did not know what to expect. She said that she did not know how she got herself in such circumstances, she was not drinking, and she was not purposefully putting herself at risk, she just didn't know. Kessel said that most of the time cases of sexual assault are not reported but that every student in the working group seemed to know someone who studied abroad who was assaulted. Reported data is known to be unreliable.

Mifflin wondered whether a self-defense course before students go abroad would be helpful to raise student confidence level. Kessel mentioned that there could be a self-defense course given for activity credit. Mifflin mentioned that such course could be useful not just for students going abroad.

Segawa noted that the under-reporting of sexual assault cases is even more marked when they occur while students are abroad. Students don't always know that it may be appropriate to report the issue here on campus. Sampen said that advisors could be a first point of contact in discussing safety issues before students go abroad. She added that it might be helpful to have resources for advisors to direct students to. Kay added that a feeling of shame and not knowing who to contact is likely to prevent students from reporting cases of sexual assault while abroad. She noted that possibly having someone that they could call long distance could encourage student reporting.

Sampen mentioned that generally, the first semester back on campus is difficult so that the experience of living in the new residence hall with other returning students would be helpful. Wimberger agreed that reintegration back in campus is difficult and that looking into this issue could be a future charge for the committee. Segawa noted that there is a welcome back event but that this has been a one time deal. Kelley indicated that having the space and a concentration of students in the new dorm would help. Wimberger noted that students sometimes feel out of place coming back to a traditional classroom after being in an experiential setting.

M/S/P to receive the report. Received unanimously with no objections.

Professional Standards Committee Final Report

Seth Weinberger, chair of the Professional Standards Committee, presented the final report (see attachment.)

Weinberger noted that the PSC spent some time working out the language for the expectations for junior faculty's participation in reviews. He noted that the code does not distinguish between junior and senior members when outlining the participation in reviews and that the language chosen by the committee in the report is pretty intentional.

Weinberger called attention to the mid-year charge to reduce the work related to faculty evaluations. He noted that they considered some suggestions from the FAC to cut down on the length of the letters. The committee also discussed the possibility of doing all streamlined reviews on the model of the first year review, without having to turn in a file. He said that there was no time to move this issue forward as it would require Faculty Code amendment and there was no time left. He suggested that the committee should be recharged to deal with this issue for next year. He also suggested charging the FAC with guidelines for cutting the length of the materials.

Weinberger also mentioned that the committee didn't complete the charge on the university policy on background checks because they are waiting for a draft policy to come forward from Human Resources.

Spivey asked about the FACs recommendations on reducing their work presented to the senate last week. The recommendations included conducting student evaluations online and submitting files electronically. Weinberger said that the faculty had voted against online student evaluations in the past but that if the faculty wanted to pursue it, the committee could revisit the issue.

Dillman asked about background checks, does anyone check that new professors have a PhD? Weinberger replied that the recruitment guidelines indicate that the search committee call to check the references. Richman asked whether official transcripts are requested and Weinberger replied that it is not required. Bartanen mentioned that the salary bump for Ph.D. completion encourages people to send in proof of their degree.

Sampen asked whether the policy regarding participation in reviews covers a sexual relationship that terminated. Weinberger said that they couldn't figure out language that could account for it. He also mentioned that there are other issues that were left out, like, for example, people who are in asexual relationships. Bartanen mentioned that there was an informal interpretation in 2004 that indicated that individuals with inveterate hostility to one another could also be excused from reviews (even if the relationship was not sexual.)

Mifflin wondered whether the person being reviewed could request that a specific individual be kept out. Weinberger said that what any one individual says can be addressed in informal ways but that there is no formal process. Bartanen mentioned that the FAC reads a lot of letters for every review and they tend to be able to judge whether an individual letter is an outlier.

M/S/P to receive the report and thank the committee for their hard work. Received unanimously with no objections.

Meeting adjourned at 5:25pm.

Respectfully Submitted,

Ariela Tubert

To: Faculty Senate

From: Denise Despres (Chairperson LMIS Committee)

Concerning: 2012-13 Activities

Date: May 3, 2012

Senate Charges to the Library, Media, and Information Systems Committee (LMIS) for 2012-2013:

1. Assess the PrintGreen initiative, and review and revise its policies as appropriate. Extend sustainability discussion to include reducing printing of campus flyers and other promotional materials.

The PrintGreen printing sustainability initiative has been very successful. There have been no additional system-wide issues since initial technical issues were corrected in the Fall semester of 2012. As expected, wasteful printing has largely been eliminated. The average number of prints per student is well below the 750 prints allotted to students. More than 95% of students printed below 750 prints for the Spring semester, 2013. PrintGreen has been successfully integrated into student orientations and has received positive feedback from prospective students and parents as a green initiative.

2. Assess the effectiveness and viability of the TurnItIn system.

TurnItIn is the university's plagiarism prevention tool, which is used by faculty to check on the originality of papers submitted by students. TurnItIn requires an annual subscription. Due to this annual expense, it was requested that the tool be re-evaluated to determine whether we should keep making the service available to our faculty. Given the number of faculty using it, the recognition that this is a national plagiarism standard tool in use by most universities, and the fact that there is no better tool available, the committee decided to keep the tool available for the campus community despite the expense of the annual subscription.

3. Monitor and update as appropriate the copyright and intellectual property policies and find effective ways to inform the campus community about changes and updates. Identify issues, if any, related to the posting of student research and the posting of blogs and videos on the university's website in relation to copyright and intellectual property policies.

The Library assumed responsibility for the implementation of the Copyright Clearance Center site license. Several efforts to inform faculty were implemented this academic year to help educate faculty concerning copyright policy and best practices. Two new guides were distributed to faculty via email:

Copyright Clearance Center Annual License: http://alacarte.pugetsound.edu/subject-guide/167-Copyright-Clearance-Center-Annual-License

Copyright Guide for Faculty: http://alacarte.pugetsound.edu/subject-guide/180 Copyright-Guide-for-Faculty

In addition, follow-up messages were distributed via the Collins Library Links and a series of posters shared with the campus community. Presentations were made to selected faculty groups.

The university's Intellectual Property policy was also reviewed and corrections made to comply with current practices. (See Addendum)

4. Assist with the Optimize Puget Sound implementation and provide feedback on policies and communication.

Over the last year, much has been accomplished to complete our conversion to PeopleSoft through the project known as Optimize Puget Sound.

As scheduled on March 25, the PeopleSoft Campus Solutions module became the system of record for the academic components of university administrative systems. Campus Solutions also went live with Financial Aid for all students on April 22. Previously, it had only been active for incoming freshman.

In addition, both the core PeopleSoft Human Resources (HR) module, which includes payroll, and the Time and Labor module, went live as planned on January 1, 2013. The first components of the university's new identity management system, known as Oracle Identity Manager, also went live in January. The Financials and Purchasing modules went live July 1, 2012.

To date, the project is on time and on budget.

The functional teams in HR and Accounting and Budget Services/Treasury continue to refine operational processes and train users across campus. The HR team began discovery on two additional modules to support operations in February: Recruitment, to handle the university's hiring needs, and Benefits Administration, to manage employee benefits through an automated, self-service portal. Both are scheduled to go live in late April.

Once core PeopleSoft implementation is completed, the focus will shift to design of a data warehouse to support predictive analysis. This work is scheduled to be completed in December 2013.

Taking full advantage of the university's new administrative systems involves a coordinated effort between the functional units and Technology Services. Challenges with using the new system are to be expected and have already been seen. However, the university's collaborative culture is enabling the teams to work successfully through issues as they arise.

Even after implementation is technically complete, much work will remain to be done. By fiscal necessity, the successful implementation of any ERP requires the system be very generic at the start. Indeed, in some cases, the newly delivered system is a step backwards to what some offices had in the university's previous system, Cascade. However, with the help of the ERP steering committee which includes representation from the Associate Deans, TS is already organizing enhancement requests for priority for implementation. Over time, the

department will work to configure the system such that it will fully meet Puget Sound's needs.

Schedule:

Project Updates

- Campus Solutions team
 - Faculty training
 - o Fall 2013 registration
 - o Summer 2013 registration
 - Student Financials
 - Advising

Human Resources

- o Recruiting
- o Benefits Administration
- Student earnings

• Financials team

- o nVision training
- o Year-end planning
- o Budget screens.

Next Steps (April/May)

- Campus Solutions team
 - o Student Financials go live.
 - o Prepare for graduation.

• Human Resources team

- o Recruiting and Benefits Administration go live.
- o Continue post go live clean up and operation refinement.
- Campus directory.

Financials team

- o Budget screen modifications.
- o PeopleTools upgrade.
- o Prepare for year-end processing

Technical team

- o Report and query development.
- o Identity system (Oracle Identity Manager OIM).

- Training/User Education
 - o Continue development of self-service guides (UPK).

Beyond May

- System refinements
- Remaining data conversions
- Bolt-ons: housing, SAG, Conduct, orientation
- Analytics: data warehouse, Hyperion planning
- Mobile applications
- myPugetSound (portal)
- Room Scheduling
- Document management

5. Assist the library staff in planning the use of library space for special collections (and use thereof).

Library Director Jane Carlin and Archivist Katie Henningsen conducted an LMIS Archive tour, introducing the Committee Members to the spaces under discussion, the ongoing work in the Archives, and the Collection. The LMIS charged Jane Carlin to put together an Ad Hoc Committee to deliberate the proper course of action concerning the development of Archives space and usage. The Ad Hoc Committee responded to a preliminary survey about archives usage and teaching potential, the subject of discussion at a meeting of the LMIS Archives & Special Collections Spaces Working Group on Monday, April 15, 2013, 3:30 p.m. – 5:00 p.m.

The Ad Hoc committee included Jane Carlin (Library), Katie Henningsen (Library), Amy Fisher (Science, Technology and Society), Laura Edgar (Art), Peggy Burge (Library), Denise Despres (English), Peter Wimberger (Museum of Natural History), Katherine Smith (History).

Based on responses to the survey that was sent out in February and the common themes that emerged, Jane shared with the group possible enhancements to the existing spaces as well as nearby spaces that could be made.

The Ad Hoc committee offered the following observations (selective):

- The space should be a place for students to work with images as well as paper. Material from the Archives & Special Collections should be digitized and made available online.
- Natural light would be great; the existing space is not inspirational.
- A glass exhibit space would attract our tours and appeal to parents, potential students, and alumni.
- Space to display student projects that utilized the collections.

- Display cases on the second floor for Archives & Special Collections material (the display cases in Jones help draw people in).
- Glass walls to see into the space, comfortable chairs, adequate table space to work, and dedicated table lamps for additional light on cloudy days.
- The space might also serve as a space for the printing press.
- Could the space serve as both class/learning space and reading room for researchers.
- The space should lend itself to professors and students working together on a project.
- Include artifacts in displays and collection.

Jane pointed out that five years ago, the Archives & Special Collections program did not exist. In the past five years, the interest in the collections has grown significantly and we can assume that additional growth and interest will continue.

The discussion then shifted to programming for the Archives & Special Collections.

- It was pointed out that Art students often ask for curatorial experience, perhaps the Archives & Special Collections could provide that experience.
- An interactive university history project using the University Archives, would
 make this material more widely accessible, while providing classes the
 opportunity to work with primary source material, with guidance students could
 select a piece from the University Archives and might research, transcribe,
 create descriptive metadata, digitize, and add to the university history project.
 This project would grow as more classes participated and become a large,
 interactive resource for faculty, students, and researchers.
- Opportunities to hold classes "in residence."
- Make maps from the Archives & Special Collections more widely available in digital format.
- Student generated exhibits for those working or using Archives & Special Collections.
- Book or material based talks.
- Attend department gatherings to share new collections/resources/services.
- Promote the Archives & Special Collections open hours to faculty, so they can share these with their students.

Toward the end of the discussion it was pointed out that there is a strong argument for creating an Archives & Special Collections/humanities teaching lab. The science students currently have labs and spaces to explore their subjects in a hands- on way, while humanities students do not have those same opportunities. A Humanities Lab would provide for:

- Additional student seating and research space. (furnishings can be phased in over time, but our preliminary floor plan has seating from 56 with a research and discovery space for large groups).
- Exhibit and display space for student and faculty research projects.
- Increased access points to collections and services.
- Research and Discovery Area designed for hands on engagement for classes and groups
 with access to digital image archives and high level scanners as well as historical artifacts
 such as the Collins Press.
- Creation of "absolute" quiet study area for all students.
- 6. Devise and recommend venues for the librarians to provide faculty members with suggested techniques for teaching information literacy, particularly related to the new first-year seminars.

Library support of first year seminars:

Librarians now serve on the Curriculum Committee, the working group of the Curriculum Committee to review FYE seminars, the Prelude Planning Committee and are also participating in the organization of the May CETL workshop that is focused on writing. In addition, we continue to partner with CETL to provide assistance to faculty in the FY seminars to expand their understanding and integration of IL. We have also participated in relevant Wednesday@4 sessions and updates about information literacy are often included in the monthly *Collins Library Links* which is distributed to faculty. Librarians continue to reach out to departments and some department specific presentations have been made. We are also running a pilot project with colleagues from Lewis & Clark College to review senior history theses and evaluate for evidence of research skills and develop a rubric for assessing competencies at the senior level. Below is a timeline that provides an overview of contributions associated with the first year seminar project.

June and August 2011: A group of faculty, led by Julie Christoph, met to discuss the current first-year seminar rubrics and ultimately decided to create a new set of rubrics. As a participant in these conversations, Peggy Burge:

- Presented data about the research competencies of incoming students from the Research Practices Survey and then
- Suggested ways to incorporate six key information literacy competencies into the new rubric. (The librarians originally presented these suggestions at a May 2009 Burlington Northern workshop for faculty.)

October 2011 through March 2012: After the faculty voted to approve the new rubric, Peggy Burge was part of a smaller working group that hammered out details to propose to the curriculum committee

May 2012 Burlington Northern Workshop:

- Peggy Burge presented an overview of data from the Research Practices Survey,
 Project Information Literacy, and the Citation Project that support the need for information literacy to be integrated into the curriculum.
- The librarians presented a four-page guide for faculty on specific ways to integrate information literacy into assignments for both semesters of the Seminars in Scholarly Inquiry
- Jane Carlin hosted a faculty visit to the Archives and Special Collections to highlight materials in the collection that might be incorporated into first-year assignments.

August 31 through September 28, 2012:

 Peggy Burge (along with Julie Christoph, Eric Orlin, and Priti Joshi) held a syllabus workshop session every Friday afternoon for faculty working on new SSI syllabi to submit to the Curriculum Committee

September 12, 2012:

• Peggy Burge and Julie Christoph co-presented on the new SSI rubrics to faculty who were not able to attend the May workshop.

June through October 2012:

- Liaison librarians have held 24 consultations with faculty to offer suggestions and feedback on the design of syllabi and assignments for first-year seminars that incorporate information literacy.
- Jane Carlin serves on Curriculum Committee working group to review new FY seminars.

Additional Related Activities:

Library facilitated participation in two **Project Information Literacy** national research studies. Both studies are available from the PL site: http://projectinfolit.org/publications/

- How College Graduates Solve Information Problem Once They Join the Workplace
- Balancing Act: How College Students Manage Technology While in the Library During Crunch Time

Information Literacy Web Portal developed for faculty:

http://alacarte.pugetsound.edu/subject-guide/5-Information-Literacy-A-Portal-for-Faculty. This portal provides guides to information literacy, recommended assignments, online learning tutorials, and links to subject specific standards.

Librarians are working with selected departments on a review of senior research skills competencies. This will include a review of selected senior research papers to assess research skills, review of the results of the research practices survey results administered to 2012 seniors, and development of subject specific research competencies.

(Note: Music program presented a checklist of research competencies last spring)
Updates on information literacy programs and initiatives are shared via **Collins Library Links** (distributed through faculty coms), correspondence with academic chairs, and through liaison librarians.

Librarians developed an **Introduction to Scholarly Practices** tutorial that is administered to all incoming students which provides an overview of academic research and academic integrity issues associated with higher education.

Librarians participate in Prelude as well as offer a program, "Piece It Together at Collins" which is a self-guided research tour of the Library during the first six weeks of class.

Research 101 is an online tutorial available to all students with selected modules on aspects of racy. http://library.ups.edu/research101/

The **Academic Integrity Tutorial** is also available for use in classes and on an individual basis: http://alacarte.pugetsound.edu/subject-guide/6-Academic-Integrity-Puget-Sound

7. Although not formally charged to review faculty websites and observance of FERPA, the LMIS committee did begin discussion of the need to provide Faculty and Staff with FERPA education and reminders about application.

The LMIS committee's initial charges did not include FERPA. However, during the meeting of October 24 2012, the committee members agreed that LMIS should take on FERPA issues as a new charge. In particular, committee members expressed concerns about infringement upon student privacy. This year, the committee discussed ways to make faculty more familiar with FERPA and to encourage use of the resources available on campus to assist them with compliance.

First, LMIS recommends consulting the links to FERPA resources already available on our campus website, which include the following:

 Using Cloud Service Providers and FERPA on Technology Services website (with links to pages on "The Cloud and My Classroom" and "Social Media and My Classroom"):

http://www.pugetsound.edu/about/offices--services/technology-services/help--support/using-cloud-services/

Indeed, the use of third party cloud storage (Dropbox, Google, etc.) to store students' data (grades, papers, class rosters, etc.) involves risks for students' privacy, as these service providers often mine the stored data for commercial purposes. To comply with FERPA, LMIS recommends that faculty back up students' data on their University of Puget Sound drive, rather than on third party cloud storage.

• FERPA Tutorial on the Academic Advising website:

http://www.pugetsound.edu/academics/academic-offices/academic-advising-registrar/know-educational-rights/ferpa-tutorial/

• Students' FERPA Rights:

 $\underline{http://www.pugetsound.edu/academics/academic-offices/academic-advising-registrar/know-educational-rights/}$

Furthermore, the committee recommends that faculty exercise care to comply with FERPA when writing letters of recommendation.

Similarly, faculty members need to be selective in the information shared during phone calls with employers who seek them as references for a students' job or internship applications, as well as in conversations with family members.

Of course, such restrictions on information sharing about academic data can sometimes undermine the ways in which faculty attempt to recommend students to employers and academic programs. One solution is to ask each student for explicit written permission to share information with third parties, if the faculty member believes it would help formulate stronger recommendations. Faculty might find a template useful in requiring such permission. In any case, it must be made clear to the student that s/he has control over this decision.

Conversations with family members seeking to know more about their students' academic performance can become quite uncomfortable if a faculty member is not adequately prepared to handle students' information in compliance with FERPA.

Thus, being well informed about the dos and don'ts regarding the use of students' educational records is extremely important, as issues can arise in many, sometimes unexpected circumstances. The availability of the resources above should be made clear, and faculty members should be encouraged to learn about FERPA to be prepared for a variety of practical situations.

The recommendations above summarize the work of LMIS in 2012-2013 on its charge regarding FERPA issues.

2013-14 Charges

Provide input and guidance to the Library during implementation of the new integrated library system (ILS) that will result in new ways of ordering materials, affect circulation procedures, as well as offer a new discovery system (library catalog)

Review of new technologies and their impact on infringement upon student privacy. This year, the committee discussed ways to make all faculty more familiar with FERPA and to encourage use of the resources available on campus to assist them with compliance.

Develop a preservation strategy for digital archives. As we all know, much of what is being written or said about Puget Sound is now electronic. We need a way to preserve that or there will be a huge gap in our history.

Continue to oversee the implementation of Optimize and keep the Faculty Senate informed about progress. The LMIS committee should also solicit feedback on areas of the system that might need our attention.

Continue to support initiatives to raise awareness and use of archives and special collection, building on the 2012-2013 LMIS Committee report.

Analyze issues of scholarly publishing and communication as they apply to Puget Sound and suggest ways to provide faculty with guidance on fair use, intellectual property rights, and management of their creative works. Promote initiatives and practices that encourage faculty to explore the challenges and opportunities associated with disseminating research, creative works, and teaching materials through new methods and electronic means through Puget Sound's institutional repository *Sound Ideas*, development of digital solutions for data storage and management supporting faculty research and teaching needs, sponsorship and encouragement of peer-reviewed electronic journals, and financial support for faculty copyright ownership in author-pays publications.

INTERNATIONAL EDUCATION COMMITTEE FINAL REPORT 2012-2013

Submitted by Co-Chairs Diane Kelley and Peter Wimberger

The members of the committee this year were: Phillip Brenfleck (student), Haile Canton (student), Lisa Ferrari (Associate Dean's office), Matt Ingalls, Michael Johnson, Diane Kelley, Allyson Lindsley (International Programs), Donn Marshall (Associate Dean of Students), John McCuistion, Stephanie Noss (International Programs), Roy Robinson (International Programs), Tanya Stambuk, Matt Warning, Peter Wimberger

Thanks to the Committee members for their hard work.

According to the Faculty Bylaws, the International Education Committee has the following responsibilities:

- 1. Establish criteria and assessment procedures for international education programs.
- 2. Review and approve new and existing international education programs and program proposals, including programs led by University faculty.
- 3. Assist the Office of International Programs in selecting students for study abroad.
- 4. Represent the interests of the Faculty in international education.
- 5. Such other duties as may be assigned to it.

Additionally, the Senate charged the IEC with the following for 2012-2013:

- 1. Work with the Office of Institutional Research to revise a Study Abroad Survey to gauge the learning process and learning outcomes with particular attention to academic rigor and writing across the curriculum that occur during study abroad programs as well as gather additional information related to international programs.
- Continue to work with faculty to encourage the integration of study abroad experiences into on-campus classes and research symposia, and work with the SLC and Dean of Students to encourage integration of study abroad experiences into co-curricular activities.
- 3. Finalize and adopt criteria for proposing UPS Short Term Faculty Led Programs.
- 4. Educate faculty regarding financial aid, policies, and procedures affiliated with study abroad programs.
- 5. Work with Curriculum Committee to design a process to approve faculty taught study abroad courses that fulfill core requirements.

The following pages discuss how the IEC addressed charges #2 and 3 in the Bylaws, as well as #1-5 in the charges from the Senate. The Bylaws charges #1, 4 and 5 are addressed in our other committee work.

BYLAWS CHARGE #2: Review and approve new and existing international education programs and program proposals, including programs led by University faculty.

This academic year, study abroad programs in the following countries were reviewed: China, Australia, New Zealand, Samoa, South Korea, Taiwan, Vietnam, Japan and India.

As a result of our reviews, the following programs were eliminated from or added to (due to student or faculty petitions) our list of accepted study abroad programs:

PROGRAMS ELIMINATED:

New Zealand

· Cut University of Auckland

Australia

 Cut IFSA-Butler James Cook University (Both locations); IES University of Melbourne; IFSA-Butler University of Western Australia; IFSA-Butler Macquarie University; IFSA- Butler Tasmania (eliminated by Butler)

Japan

· Cut Tokyo International Christian

Scotland

· Cut Glasgow and Aberdeen (but we added Saint Andrews)

Spain

· We are removing the advanced Spanish option for URI in Salamanca, but keeping the beginning option of this program

NEW PROGRAMS APPROVED:

Argentina

 Approved Summer Language and Culture program at the University of Buenos Aires through IFSA-Butler

Iceland CELL

- Provisionally approved so 2 students can apply to participate in the program
- Spain
 - · Approved the Alcalingua Summer Internship Program (Alcalá)
 - · Approved the Valladolid Spring and Summer Program

Scotland

· Approved University of St. Andrews, but removed Glasgow and Aberdeen from the approved program list

Various Locations

Approved SIT Health and Community: Globalization, Culture and Care

Early in Fall semester, the committee will address the program proposals for the following three new programs, all proposed by faculty:

SIT Balkans - http://www.sit.edu/studyabroad/ssa_hrr.cfm
IES Turkey - http://www.iesabroad.org/study-abroad/turkey
CIEE Thailand - http://www.ciee.org/study-abroad/thailand/khon-kaen/development-globalization/

Kathleen Campbell will review these programs over the summer and forward her recommendation to the committee; there has been a delay on the approval process of these three programs due to Optimize. These proposals should be addressed early in the fall so that, if they are approved, they are on the list of approved programs for students considering applying for study abroad.

BYLAWS CHARGE #3: Assist the Office of International Programs in selecting students for study abroad.

This was a very time-consuming aspect of our work this year, especially at the beginning of the spring semester. In the fall semester, the Office of International Programs was informed that the fixed budget for study abroad would be strictly enforced. As a result, and very quickly, the IEC and OIP finalized the criteria and application process. Students were required to write two essays and were chosen based on the following criteria:

- 1. Good academic and judicial standing (not on probation)
- 2. Students meet program requirements.
- 3. Highest Priority: Students going on Puget Sound sponsored programs (e.g. Dijon, Oaxaca) and students in majors that require study abroad. Students in language immersion programs also will get higher priority.
- 4. No Faculty Concerns
- 5. Essays
- 6. Students may be limited to a single program (semester or year) taken on a case by case basis
- 7. Preference to rising seniors who have not previously studied abroad, then rising juniors, then sophomores
- 8. GPA will be considered. Students with below a 3.0 GPA may have lower priority.

The newly implemented process had predictable wrinkles. In response to faculty concerns an Application Working Group was formed including faculty from multiple disciplines and met twice to revise the application process. All students will be required to write an essay; the essay for students in programs that require study abroad will be different for those in other majors. Students with a GPA below 3.0 will be required to answer a second question.

IEC members helped in the selection process. Ultimately 19 students were either denied or reduced from 2 semesters to 1 semester in order to remain within budget; most of the denied students did not meet the minimum requirements of the programs to which they

applied. There has already been enough attrition that the study abroad program will be within budget. This budget surplus leads to the question (see proposed charges below), can all or part of this budget surplus be rolled over as is done with tuition benefits?

SENATE CHARGE #1: Work with the Office of Institutional Research to revise a Study Abroad Survey to gauge the learning process and learning outcomes with particular attention to academic rigor and writing across the curriculum that occur during study abroad programs as well as gather additional information related to international programs.

The Committee met with representatives of the OIR to look at the questions and results from last year's surveys. Although the NSSE results suggest that students on study abroad more often examine the strengths and weakness of their views, more often try to better understand someone else's point of view from the other's person's perspective, and report that they learned something that changed the way they think about the world, there is no way to tell from these results whether study abroad led to these differences or if the group that studies abroad is different from the group that does not study abroad. Other data show that the two groups are different in multiple ways. The Committee didn't understand the rationale for focusing on writing or academic rigor as those are not the primary reasons or expected outcomes from a study abroad experience. The Committee respectfully requests a rigorous definition of academic rigor from the Senate. The NSSE results show no difference in self-reported writing ability between study abroad and non-study abroad students. Last year's exit survey show self-reported increased abilities to: speak and understand foreign languages, placing current problems in historical, cultural, or philosophical perspective, gaining familiarity with a variety of academic fields, understanding interrelationships among various fields of knowledge and better understanding moral and ethical issues. To really understand the impact of study abroad on students would require a well-constructed assessment with pre- and post-evaluation. A few studies like this have been done that show the value of study abroad. The Committee was not convinced that it was worth our time and money to undertake this kind of assessment without a clear need for answers to specific questions.

SENATE CHARGE #2: Continue to work with faculty to encourage the integration of study abroad experiences into on-campus classes and research symposia, and work with the SLC and Dean of Students to encourage integration of study abroad experiences into co-curricular activities.

In the spring semester, a subcommittee was formed specifically to address the re-integration of returning study abroad students back into campus life. The subcommittee identified two goals: to help students re-adjust to campus life and also to provide a forum for research presentations that would be held simultaneously with the Study Abroad Fair on September 24. It was ultimately decided that OIP would arrange for a "Welcome Back" event at the beginning of September to which faculty of returning abroad students will be invited. This event will also be used as a forum to welcome students to brown-bag lunches and meetings to discuss adjustment issues, highlighting abroad experiences on a resume, etc. Last year, OIP attempted the "informational" part of the welcome-back activities, but they were poorly attended. It is our

hope that the presence of faculty and good food in a festive environment will improve the success of this event.

In order to highlight student academics and research while on study abroad, we explored the possibility of a poster / photo montage session to be held contemporaneously with the Study Abroad Fair in the SUB. However, it was decided that the first three weeks of the semester were insufficient to identify students willing to participate and get them to do so. Instead, we recommend requiring such a presentation for students who go abroad on programs with significant research components (such as SIT programs) in future years, so that they may be made aware of this requirement before they leave for study abroad.

We were not able to address all parts of this charge and therefore are including it on the list of proposed charges for next year.

SENATE CHARGE #3: Finalize and adopt criteria for proposing UPS Short Term Faculty Led Programs.

The Committee discussed different models for Short Term Study Abroad, including summer courses and the semester/trip model currently used in a couple of our classes. The greatest remaining obstacle to revising the Short-term Study Abroad Handbook for Faculty (available online) is establishing a viable financial model for summer study abroad. The main question is how much of a student's tuition should directly subsidize their program costs. If students have to pay for their program costs, in addition to full tuition, it is unlikely that many students would opt to attend our programs since there are many less expensive programs. Many other institutions heavily subsidize their own summer study abroad programs.

SENATE CHARGE #4: Educate faculty regarding financial aid, policies, and procedures affiliated with study abroad programs.

The Committee will send out a short primer on financial aid, policies, deadlines and procedure prior to advising next fall. If there is interest, we will organize a session for faculty to explain the current policies and procedures.

SENATE CHARGE #5: Work with Curriculum Committee to design a process to approve faculty taught study abroad courses that fulfill core requirements.

We discussed this with the Curriculum Committee. The IEC approves study abroad programs. Specific Puget Sound courses are approved by the Curriculum Committee.

WE RECOMMEND THE FOLLOWING CHARGES FOR 2013-2014:

- 1. Review the current list of study abroad programs and eliminate expensive programs that do not provide something distinctive (i.e. language, discipline or geography).
- 2. Work with Dean Bartanen and FVP Mondou to consider models for rolling over some or all surplus study abroad funds. These funds could provide a buffer to allow more students to study abroad in years of high demand and be used to fund the development of more Puget Sound short-term study away programs.
- 3. Once the financial model is resolved, revise the short-term study abroad guide for faculty and develop a clear template for proposing, organizing and leading short-term study abroad programs.
- 4. Work with the Office of Institutional Research to evaluate the questions addressing study abroad that are currently on sophomore and senior surveys, as well as the returning questionnaire for study abroad students. The committee should attempt to identify clear questions for which the response will be useful to the institution.
- Continue to work with faculty to encourage the integration of study abroad experiences into on-campus classes and research symposia, and work with the SLC and Dean of Students to encourage integration of study abroad experiences into co-curricular activities.

2012-13 Year-End Report of the Professional Standards Committee

The members of the Professional Standards Committee (PSC) in 2012-13 were: Kristine Bartanen (ex-officio), Douglas Cannon, Jennifer Hastings, Pat Krueger, Andreas Madlung, Doug Sackman, Kurt Walls, and Seth Weinberger (chair).

The Senate charges to the PSC were:

- 1) Review the policy on "Background Checks of Faculty" being drafted by the Human Resources Department;
- 2) Review the "Research Misconduct Policy" document and suggest changes to existing documents as needed to achieve consistency among the various response processes in the case of research misconduct;
- 3) Clarify (a) expectation for junior (tenure-line) faculty participation in evaluations of departmental colleagues, and (b) if a written recommendation is required of junior faculty in a change of status review (promotion, tenure);
- 4) Clarify who is responsible for ensuring adequate classroom visits by colleagues—the head officer or the evaluee; and
- 5) Clarify whether a letter of evaluation sent directly to the Dean/Faculty Advancement Committee in an open file may be read by an evaluee.
- 6) Continue the review of Faculty Code provisions on guidelines for the use of course assistants.

The charges were addressed as follows:

document.

- 1) The PSC has not yet received recommendations from Human Resources; thus no action was taken on this charge. The PSC recommends that the charge be reissued for 2013-14.
- 2) The PSC approved a new Research Misconduct Policy on April 8, 2013. The new policy required a Faculty Code amendment to align the faculty's grievance policy with the federally-required Research Misconduct Policy; the code amendment was approved by the Faculty at the meeting of April 15, 2013. The amendment will be presented to the Board of Trustees for approval at the May 2013 meeting. The Research Misconduct Policy can be found here:

 http://www.pugetsound.edu/files/resources/3117 Research%20Misconduct%20P olicy.pdf. The accompanying code amendment can be found at the end of this
- 3) The PSC finds that the Faculty Code does not distinguish a subset of faculty colleagues designated as "junior." The PSC interprets this to mean participation responsibilities in faculty evaluations are the same for all faculty colleagues.
- 4) The Faculty Evaluation Criteria and Procedures document on page 11, paragraph 2 states that the "final determination of adequacy rests with the head officer and the Faculty Advancement Committee." The PSC affirms that it is the evaluee's

- responsibility to ensure that adequate opportunities for evaluators to visit are available, but not to ensure that the visits actually occur.
- 5) The PSC modified page 20, paragraph 2 of the Faculty Evaluation Criteria and Procedures document to read "The head officer notifies departmental colleagues, and outside letter writers upon receipt of their letter, as to whether the evaluation file is open or closed. If the letter writer does not wish his/her letter to be read by an evaluee in an open file, the letter may be altered or withdrawn."
- 6) The PSC did not address this issue. The PSC recommends that the charge be reissued for 2013-14.

Other issues addressed by the PSC:

- 1) On September 12, 2012, the PSC approved the Department of Mathematics & Computer Science's Statement of Evaluation Standards and Procedures.
- 2) On September 19, the PSC approved, with slight modifications, the School of Business and Leadership's Statement of Procedures, Criteria, and Standards for Faculty Evaluation.
- 3) On September 26, the PSC approved, with slight modifications, the School of Occupational Therapy and Physical Therapy's Interdepartmental Evaluation Criteria.
- 4) On October 4, the PSC discussed the issue of students with disabilities who might require additional time to complete Instructor and Course Evaluation Forms. In consultation with the Director of Disability Services, the PSC decided that the Office of Disability Services (ODS) would send notices to students with disabilities in classes in which evaluations are required to notify them of the opportunity to complete the evaluation at ODS. It was also recommended that ODS set up a common time or times for disabled students to complete evaluations *en masse*.
- 5) On February 12, 2013, the PSC discussed whether, given evidence that few students require the full time, 20 minutes should still be allotted for course evaluations. The PSC discussed reducing the allotted time to 15 minutes, but took no action.
- 6) On February 12, the PSC discussed the possibility of moving the files of evaluees online to save resources and time. The issue was tabled, pending action from the Library, Media, and Information Services committee regarding on-line processes.
- 7) On February 18, following input from the university's legal counsel, the PSC approved a Faculty Code interpretation concerning the professional ethics of faculty and relationships of a sexual nature. The interpretation is included below and will be presented to the Academic and Student Affairs Committee of the Board for concurrence at the May 2013 meeting.
- 8) On March 25, the PSC approved an addendum to the Department of English's evaluation criteria for the Director of the Center for Writing, Learning, and Teaching (currently Julie Nelson Christoph).

- 9) On April 8, the PSC approved an addendum to the Department of Politics & Government's evaluation criteria for the position of Professor of Environmental Policy and Decision Making (currently Daniel Sherman).
- 10)On April 22, the PSC discussed ways to improve the evaluation process, with an eye to reducing the workloads on the Faculty Advancement Committee, the evaluatee, department chairs, and the departments. The PSC considered several options, including adding to the Faculty Evaluation Criteria and Procedures document recommended page limits for statements and letters and providing a document detailing the expectations for an evaluator's letter. The PSC recommends that the Faculty Advancement Committee be tasked with recommending page limits and detailing expectations. The PSC also discussed simplifying all streamlined reviews by eliminating the need for an evaluatee to submit a formal file. Instead, if a review is to be streamlined, it should resemble the reviews that occur during the 1st and 2nd years of employment which culminate in a "written progress report by the head officer that should be forwarded to the individual, the Faculty Advancement Committee, and the Dean." Given the end of the semester, the PSC was unable to take action and recommends that a charge is issued for 2013-14.

Proposed charges for 2013-2014:

- 1) Review the policy on "Background Checks of Faculty" being drafted by the Human Resources Department.
- 2) Continue the review of Faculty Code provisions on guidelines for the use of course assistants.
- 3) Formulate recommendations for streamlining the faculty evaluation process in order to reduce workload on evaluees, departments, head officers, the Faculty Advancement Committee, and the Dean of the University. Propose amendments to the Faculty Code that are entailed by these recommendations.
- 4) The PSC recommends that the Faculty Advancement Committee be tasked with recommending page limits both for evaluee statements and for letters of evaluation by colleagues and with detailing expectations for faculty evaluation files.

Respectfully submitted,

Seth Weinberger Associate Professor Department of Politics & Government Chair, Professional Standards Committee, 2012-13 Interpretation of Chapter I, Part C, Section 3, Chapter 1, Part D, Section 2 (e), and Chapter I, Part D, Section 4. Professional Ethics of Faculty and Relationships of a Consensual Sexual Nature.

It is in the best interest of the university and all individuals associated with the university that there be no real or perceived bias in situations where one individual exerts influence over another colleague or staff member. Situations of direct supervision or when one has the ability to advance, promote, recommend, or in any other way directly influence the academic or work status of the colleague are the times when transparency is required.

The existence of a consensual sexual relationship constitutes a conflict of interest, and can create a real or perceived bias. Therefore, it is the policy of the university that such relationships should be disclosed when there is any possibility of a supervisory or career influencing role between the parties. When faculty or staff members enter into a consensual sexual relationship where one party has supervisory or career influence over the other, each party is required to promptly disclose the relationship to his/her superior(s) so that reassignment, alternative supervision processes, or other arrangements can be facilitated and documented.

The following scenarios are presented as examples where a faculty member must disclose the existence of a consensual sexual relationship. They are not intended to be exclusive, and faculty members should exercise judgment when faced with a similar situation.

- The evaluation process is clearly a career-influencing relationship. No faculty member should participate in the evaluation of another faculty member with whom he or she is involved in a consensual sexual relationship and all faculty members, including head officers, are expected to recuse themselves from such situations.
- Hiring decisions are also understood to involve the exercise of judgment and may result in a work- or career-influencing relationship. No faculty member should participate in the search or hiring process when a person with whom he or she is involved in a consensual sexual relationship is an applicant and all faculty members, including head officers, are expected to recuse themselves from such situations.
- The responsibilities of serving as department chair or program director may also, at times, require supervising or making decisions about the academic or work status of other departmental members. Departmental chairs should be aware of when their duties place them in a career-influencing relationship to a colleague with whom they are involved in a consensual sexual relationship. If and when such situations should arise, chairs should take care to put alternative processes in place to avoid conflicts of interest or other improprieties.

Amendment to the Faculty Code (passed by the Faculty at the meeting of April 15, 2013)

Chapter I, Part D, Section 4 - Professional Ethics

Professors are bound to observe acceptable standards of professional ethics. In general, a professor should not compromise the interests of the university or of one's students in favor of one's own. Questions related to violations of professional ethics should be 1 handled in the following manner:

- a. First, take steps required by public law as implemented in university policies.
- b. **Second, when there is no relevant public law,** notify the faculty member of suspected misconduct on his or her part. There may be an explanation that resolves the matter satisfactorily.
- c. Failing to receive an explanation that is satisfactory, or not wishing to deal directly with the person that is suspected of misconduct, one should take the matter to the Chair of that person's department. (If the Chair is the person suspected of misconduct one should take the matter to the Dean.) The Chair may resolve the matter to everyone's satisfaction.

d. If these steps do not resolve the problem, the matter should normally be referred to the Dean and handled through the grievance process as provided in Chapter VI, with the Dean responsible for filing the grievance. In the event that the Dean does not file the grievance, faculty members retain the right to do so.

Grievances must be filed according to the timeline outlined in Chapter VI.

Chapter VI, Section 2 - Prehearing Settlement Conference

a. Within thirty (30) working days of the alleged violation, the grievant shall give written notice thereof to the respondent; provided, that the notice may be served on the dean if the grievant is without knowledge of the **identity** of the respondent.

A grievance notice presented after thirty working days of the alleged violation will be considered only if: (1) an alternative process is required by public law as implemented in university policies; or (2) the grievant demonstrates that he or she did not know, or could not have known, about the alleged violation until a later time. In the second instance, the grievance notice must be given within thirty working days of the date upon which the grievant gained knowledge of the alleged violation.

b. The notice shall state the relevant facts with reasonable particularity, cite those portions of the appointment contract or the faculty code alleged to be violated, and include proposed remedies.

c. Within five (5) working days of notice the respondent shall conduct formal discussions with the grievant and other appropriate persons with the intent of reaching a satisfactory settlement of the grievance, and which, if found, shall terminate the grievance process. Any party may terminate the prehearing settlement conference if they feel that further discussions will be unsuccessful.

Date: May 3, 2013 To: Faculty Senate

From: Tatiana Kaminsky, Curriculum Committee Chair

2012-2013 Curriculum Committee Final Report

INTRODUCTION

This report summarizes the work undertaken by the Curriculum Committee during the 2012-2013 academic year (AY).

The chair would like to recognize the work of the committee as a whole. There was an extraordinary amount of work to complete this year, in part due to the transition to the Seminars in Scholarly Inquiry. The working groups undertook their responsibilities with considerable proficiency and diligence. Each member's contributions to his/her assigned working group assignments are cataloged in this document and the attached appendices. I would like to specifically acknowledge Lisa Johnson, who acted as secretary for the year. By providing thorough minutes of the meetings, an accurate account of committee work was recorded. As chair, I would also like to personally thank each member for his/her diligence in completing these tasks. For working group assignments, please refer to Appendix A.

CHARGES

The Curriculum Committee received and/or generated several charges for AY 2012-2013. These charges are outlined below. More comprehensive descriptions of our work on these charges begin immediately after the outline.

- 1. Continue the ongoing business of the Committee, including
 - (a) Complete 5-year reviews of departments and programs from 2011-2012
 - i. Geology
 - ii. Physics
 - (b) 5-year reviews of departments and programs
 - i. Academic Internship Program
 - ii. African American Studies (deferred to 2013-2014)
 - iii. Art
 - iv. Biology and Molecular Biology
 - v. Classics (deferred to 2013-2014)
 - vi. Communication Studies (deferred to 2013-2014)
 - vii. Dual-Degree Engineering
 - viii. Education
 - ix. English (deferred to 2013-2014)
 - x. Global Development Studies
 - xi. History
 - xii. Honors

- xiii. Latin American Studies
- xiv. Neuroscience (deferred to 2013-2014)
- xv. Special Interdisciplinary Major
- (c) Ongoing Assessments and Evaluations of Core Rubrics
 - i. Completion of review of specific core areas from 2011-2012
 - 1. Fine Arts Approaches (review accepted September 25, 2012)
 - 2. Humanistic Approaches (review accepted October 02, 2012)
 - ii. Review of specific core areas
 - 1. Connections (review accepted March 14, 2013)
 - 2. Social Scientific Approaches (review accepted May 02, 2013)
- (d) Evaluation of Core Course Proposals, including Seminar in Scholarly Inquiry (SSI) 1 & 2
- (e) Establishment of the Academic Calendar. Clarify language in the Guidelines for Setting the Academic Calendar regarding grade submission dates.
- (f) Evaluation of Proposal of New Minors
 - i. Latino Studies
 - ii. Education
- 2. Address Charges from the Faculty Senate:
 - (a) Review the policy recommendations for the new freshman seminars (Seminars in Scholarly Inquiry I and II) proposed by the policy subcommittee of the First-Year Seminar Burlington Northern working group and move them (or revised versions of them) forward for approval by the full faculty as soon as is feasible.
 - (b) Find concrete ways to encourage departments and programs to prepare for implementation of the new freshman seminars (Seminar in Scholarly Inquiry I and II), including as suggested in the April 2012 Student Life Committee report avoiding assignment of adjunct or visiting faculty members to first-year seminar courses.
 - (c) Review the curricular distinctions institution-wide between the Bachelor of Science and Bachelor of Arts degrees.
 - (d) Work with the International Education Committee to design a process for approval of faculty-taught study-abroad courses that fulfill core requirements.

DISCUSSION OF CHARGES

CONTINUE THE ONGOING BUSINESS OF THE COMMITTEE

Five Year Reviews

In AY 2012-2013, the Curriculum Committee accepted the curriculum reviews of:

- a. Academic Internship Program (approved 05/02/13)
- b. Art (approved 04/18/13)
- c. Biology (approved 10/23/12)
- d. Dual-Degree Engineering (approved 05/02/13)
- e. Education (approved 05/02/13)

- f. Geology (approved 05/02/13)
- g. Global Development Studies (approved 01/31/13)
- h. History (approved 03/07/13)
- i. Honors (approved 02/21/13)
- j. Latin American Studies (approved 02/21/13)
- k. Physics (approved 05/02/13)
- l. Special Interdisciplinary Major (approved 04/18/13 with changes to the SIM proposal guidelines approved 05/02/13)

Working group responses to the curriculum reviews can be found in Appendices B through L. Note that there is not a report for the Dual-Degree Engineering review. The working group that completed the review did not have questions or suggestions for the department and recommended acceptance of the department's review without changes.

Five curriculum reviews are to be held over until 2013-2014:

- a. African American Studies
- b. Classics
- c. Communication Studies
- d. English
- e. Neuroscience

ON-GOING ASSESSMENT AND EVALUATION OF THE CORE RUBRICS

Fine Arts Approaches core area review:

In 2010-2011, the Curriculum Committee was charged with considering the suitability of the existing Fine Arts Approaches core rubric. The committee decided to hold that charge over to 2011-2012, in order to incorporate it into the core area review that was already scheduled for the latter year. Last year, as part of its review of the Fine Arts Approaches core area, the working group proposed some changes to the core area rubric but the recommendations were not brought before the full committee, so the report was held over until Fall 2012. The report was presented to the full committee, including recommendations for renaming the core and revising some of the rubric's language. The report was approved on September 25, 2012. See Appendix M for the full report.

Humanistic Approaches core area review:

The Humanistic Approaches core area review was scheduled for AY2011-2012, but the working group completed the review after the last committee meeting in Spring 2012. As a result, the report was not presented to the full Curriculum Committee until Fall 2012. The working group's report was presented to the full Curriculum Committee and approved on October 02, 2012. No recommendations were made to change the Humanistic Approaches rubric. See Appendix N for the full report.

Connections core area review:

The Connections core area review was conducted this academic year. The working group presented the report to the full committee on March 14, 2013 and the report was approved. There are a number of recommendations that the Curriculum Committee approved. They are as follows: Recommendations:

- 1. We recommend that more Connections Core courses be offered.
- 2. We recommend that the enrollment cap of 44 for team-taught Connections courses be lowered to 32. This will encourage more faculty to participate in team-taught Connections Core courses. That in turn will help the Connections Core courses that are taught to be more explicitly interdisciplinary. It should also increase the number of Connections Core courses that are offered.
- 3. We recommend the exploration of additional ways to facilitate the collaborative teaching and development of Connections courses. How can faculty best be supported as they take the anxiety-provoking step of teaching outside of their disciplines in this core?

Given the vehemence of the criticisms we heard from some faculty, we recommend that a task-force be formed to undertake an in-depth review of the Connections Core, in a manner similar to the recent review of the first-year seminars. One issue the task force should consider is whether some Connections Core courses should be offered at the sophomore level. Currently there is no part of the core explicitly aimed at sophomores; changing this might help with retention.

See Appendix O for the full report.

Social Scientific Approaches core area review:

The Social Scientific Approaches core area review was conducted this academic year. This review was partially completed by one working group in Fall 2012, but two of the three members of the group were on sabbatical or leave in the Spring 2013. So two additional Curriculum Committee members completed the review and submitted the report to the full committee. No changes were recommended to the rubric. The report was approved on May 2, 2013 and is included as Appendix P.

Evaluation of Program and Core Course Proposals besides SSI

A large proportion of the work done by the Curriculum Committee this year was dedicated to reviewing and approving courses for the Freshmen Seminars (Seminars in Scholarly Inquiry [SSI]). In total, 72 SSI course proposals were approved.

Policy issues regarding the seminars were also decided, some of which are outlined in the Senate charges below. Additional work that was done was to add language to the online bulletin for all SSI courses (approved on 02/21/13). It reads as follows:

The First-Year Seminars at Puget Sound introduce students into an academic community and engage them in the process of scholarly inquiry. Each

seminar is focused around a scholarly topic, set of questions, or theme, through which students engage with challenging texts and develop the writing, speaking, and information literacy capabilities essential to successful college-level work.

This was deemed necessary in order to assist students in understanding that these courses are designed to improve skills necessary for scholarship, in addition to teaching content.

There was also a need to accommodate students who were unable to complete both Freshman Seminar courses this academic year (such as transfer students or students who did not pass one of the courses). The following was proposed and approved in the April 04, 2013 meeting:

The proposal is to grant a blanket exception that allows all continuing students to satisfy WR or SCIS with SSI on the following basis: A student needing only WR would take SSI1. A student needing only SCIS would take SSI2 (since the SSI2 rubric best matches the 'substantive written work' piece of SCIS). A student needing both would take SSI1 and SSI2 in sequence.

Finally, the Curriculum Committee approved a procedure that will be followed over the summer if there are additional SSI courses needed for Fall 2013. This procedure was approved in the April 18, 2013 meeting and reads as follows:

If we need additional SSI offerings for fall semester, those courses and only those courses will be reviewed by two committee members and the Associate Dean and any holdover courses will be reviewed in the fall.

In addition to the SSI courses, the Committee reviewed a number of course proposals designed for other areas of the core (see Administrative Action Report in Appendix Q for a full listing of courses approved this academic year).

ACADEMIC CALENDAR

One of the ongoing charges for the Curriculum Committee is to approve the academic calendar. The full 2013-2014 calendar and the basic 2016-2017 calendar were approved on September 25, 2012. There was also a question from the Registrar's office regarding clarifying language about grade submission dates for the Spring and Summer terms. The Guidelines for Setting the Academic Calendar were very specific about grade submission for the Fall semester, but no guidelines were present for Spring or Summer terms. The Guidelines were amended to clarify grade submission dates. The new Guidelines were approved on November 27, 2012 and read as follows:

Fall Semester mid-term grades shall be due at noon on the Wednesday following mid-term.

Fall Semester final grades shall be due at noon on the Monday immediately following the second Friday after the end of final examinations or at noon on January 2, whichever is later. If January 2 is an official university holiday, then grades will be due at noon on the next business day.

Spring Semester mid-term grades shall be due at noon on the Monday following spring break.

Spring Semester final grades shall be due at noon on the second Wednesday following final examinations.

Summer Session final grades shall be due at noon on the sixth working day following the end of each summer term.

EVALUATION OF PROPOSAL FOR NEW MINORS

The Curriculum Committee reviewed and approved two new minors this academic year.

Latino studies minor:

The Hispanic Studies program proposed a new Latino studies minor. The working group carefully considered the proposed minor and sent suggestions and concerns to the Hispanic Studies program (See Appendix R). Initially, the working group recommended that the implementation of the Latino Studies minor be deferred until Fall 2014 due to some of the concerns. The full committee supported this recommendation in the April 04, 2013 meeting. Hispanic Studies requested an opportunity to revise the proposal based on the working group's recommendations and have the proposal reconsidered this academic year. This request was granted. Representatives of the Hispanic Studies program also met with members of the working group to discuss the concerns. Hispanic Studies revised the proposal and resubmitted it. The Curriculum Committee's concerns were satisfactorily addressed and the Latino Studies minor proposal was approved on May 02, 2013, with the exception of LS 401, which is the capstone course for the minor. The working group felt that the course still needed to be more thoroughly conceptualized and described. The Associate Deans' office will review future changes to the course. It was also noted that LS 401 did not need to be offered during the 2013-2014 academic year, so Hispanic Studies had time to make suggested changes to the course.

Education minor:

The working group carefully reviewed the proposed Education minor. The working group had some questions for the School of Education, including ensuring that Psychology, Comparative Sociology, and African American Studies were supportive of the proposal, since these departments house courses that are required for the minor. The answers received from the School of Education satisfied the working group's concerns and acceptance of the Education minor proposal was recommended. The Curriculum Committee accepted the proposed minor on May 02, 2013. The School of Education plans to initiate the program in Fall 2014.

CHARGES FROM THE FACULTY SENATE

The Faculty Senate charged the Curriculum Committee with four tasks during the 2012-2013 AY. They were as follows:

- (a) Review the policy recommendations for the new freshman seminars (Seminars in Scholarly Inquiry I and II) proposed by the policy subcommittee of the First-Year Seminar Burlington Northern working group and move them (or revised versions of them) forward for approval by the full faculty as soon as is feasible.
- (b) Find concrete ways to encourage departments and programs to prepare for implementation of the new freshman seminars (Seminar in Scholarly Inquiry I and II), including as suggested in the April 2012 Student Life Committee report avoiding assignment of adjunct or visiting faculty members to first-year seminar courses.

These first two charges were related to each other and were considered together. The Curriculum Committee was asked to approve a memo from the First-Year Seminar Policy Subcommittee (as described in the first charge). The committee approved all points of the memo except for #17, which related to the Associate Deans' office asking experienced faculty to teach off cycle SSI courses. The committee also made a small wording change to point #9, which related to transfer students and whether or not courses they had taken at other institutions could be counted toward the SSI requirements. The memo, minus #17, was approved on October 23, 2012.

One of the working groups revised point #17, which was related to the second charge of suggesting strategies to encourage more experienced faculty to teach the SSI courses, especially as related to off-cycle seminars. The original language of #17 read, "The Associate Deans should ask more experienced faculty to teach the off-cycle seminars, since the off-cycle seminars will likely include a more challenging group of students (students who failed a previous SSI course, incoming transfer students, and so forth)." The working group revised the language to more explicitly define what was meant by "more experienced faculty." The revised point #17 was approved by the full Curriculum Committee on November 27, 2012. The Curriculum Committee also concluded that these are guidelines, not requirements.

The approved memo may be found in Appendix S.

(c) Review the curricular distinctions institution-wide between the Bachelor of Science and Bachelor of Arts degrees.

One of the working groups took responsibility for this Senate charge. The working group was uncertain about the scope of this charge, so sought clarification. They were told to focus their review on departments that offered both a BS and a BA degree. The working group submitted a report to the full Curriculum Committee, which was approved on April 18, 2013 (see appendix T). There was a larger discussion about the differences between the

two degrees campus-wide and how decisions about which degree to offer were made. Some committee members questioned whether or not a liberal arts university should offer a Bachelor of Science degree. But the Curriculum Committee determined that these questions were beyond the scope of the Senate charge for this year. It may be a question worth exploring further in the future, perhaps as a Senate charge for another academic year.

(d) Work with the International Education Committee to design a process for approval of faculty-taught study-abroad courses that fulfill core requirements.

Another working group took responsibility for addressing this Senate charge. One of the Curriculum Committee members had conversations with Peter Wimberger, chair of the International Educational Committee, and Roy Robinson, director of the International Programs. There was confusion about this charge so clarification was sought by the Senate, which stated that there were no questions about the program. As a result, no further work on this Senate charge was completed.

BUSINESS TO BE CARRIED OVER TO 2013-2014 AND RECOMMENDATIONS FOR FUTURE CHARGES

- 1. Reviews scheduled for 2012-2013 that were deferred (secondary to departmental request):
 - a. African American Studies
 - b. Classics
 - c. Communication Studies
 - d. English
 - e. Neuroscience
- 2. There were a number of issues that arose toward the end of this academic year that the Curriculum Committee suggests as potential charges for future academic years. They are as follows:
 - a. When considering SSI courses, there was concern that transfer students would take courses that were specially designated for them (e.g. off-cycle seminars), which could potentially interfere with their integration into the campus community. The Curriculum Committee thought that further consideration about strategies to successfully integrate these students would be beneficial (both with the SSI courses and more broadly).
 - b. In April, the Committee on Diversity (CoD) shared a memo with the Curriculum Committee. The memo outlined the CoD's work, including recommendations regarding a diversity requirement for students at the university. We recommend that close collaboration happen between the CoD and Curriculum Committee as this moves forward.
 - c. When working on the Senate charge regarding review of the distinction between BA and BS degrees in departments that offer both, questions arose

- about the criteria for deciding upon which degree would be awarded across the campus. We recommend further consideration regarding these criteria, including exploration about whether or not there is consistency when making these decisions and potentially creating campus wide criteria for deciding which degree should be awarded.
- d. The working groups noted that the majority of departments exceed the 9 course limits for majors. One working group pointed out that the 9 course requirement was created in 1983. There were questions about whether or not this limit was still relevant and we suggest further exploration of this issue.
- e. The working group that completed the review for the School of Education noted that the questions for the self-study were not all relevant to a graduate program. The working group raised questions about whether or not there should be separate questions for graduate program review. We suggest that this be considered further.
- f. There was some concern about the numbers of minors that are being proposed. Questions were raised about whether or not there should be a cap on minors offered at the university and a suggestion was made that this be explored further.
- g. Another issue arose during the Academic Internship Program review. A number of employers require that students completing internships earn course credit for their work, which creates issues, especially during the summer. The working group conducting the review suggested "further exploration of how comparable institutions are addressing this."

APPENDICES

Appendix A: Working Group Assignments and Membership

WORKING GROUP 1: African American Studies, Biology and Molecular Biology, Honors Program, Latin American Studies, Social Scientific Approaches core area

Roger Allen (lead; on sabbatical Spring 2013)

Linda Williams (on leave Spring 2013)

Lisa Ferrari

WORKING GROUP 2: Art, Connections core area, Connections course proposals,

Education, History

Gwynne Brown

Mike Spivey

Jonathan Stockdale (lead)

Lisa Ferrari

WORKING GROUP 3: Dual-Degree Engineering, Global Development Studies, Seminar in Scholarly Inquiry 1 proposals, Seminar in Scholarly Inquiry 2 proposals

Jane Carlin

Julie Christoph

Paul Loeb (lead)

Lisa Ferrari

WORKING GROUP 4: Internship Program, Neuroscience, Seminar in Scholarly Inquiry 1 proposals, Seminar in Scholarly Inquiry 2 proposals

Brad Tomhave

Alison Tracy Hale (lead)

Barbara Warren

Lisa Ferrari

WORKING GROUP 5: Approaches core course proposals, Classics, Communication Studies, English, Latino Studies Minor, Special Interdisciplinary Major (review and proposals)

Terry Beck (lead)

Sara Freeman

Alan Krause

Lisa Ferrari

Appendix B: Report of the Curriculum Committee on the Academic Internship Program Review

April 2013

The Working Group recommends that the Curriculum Committee accept the Academic Internship Program's Curriculum Review

Introduction

The Working Group would like to commend Alana Hentges, Kim McDowell, and the members of their team for their thorough and thoughtful review. Their dedication to Puget Sound students is exceptional and evident, and their extensive work in facilitating a variety of internship activities, of which the Academic Internship Program (AIP) is only one, is immensely valuable to our campus and provides a tremendous service to our students and to the academic programs.

As the AIP report notes, career placement is a vital concern to parents of college students and prospective college students, and professional internships provide valuable experience and a significant component of career readiness. In addition, internships can add vitality and richness to student academic and campus experiences. We agree with the AIP report's assessment that such internships are a dynamic and important part of what a liberal arts college can and should provide for its students.

The current AIP consists of three related **academic** "course" offerings (AIP report page 2):

- 1. The interdisciplinary Internship Seminar (INTN 497) for students from a variety of disciplines
- 2. A discipline-specific Internship Seminar (currently offered only by English, ENGL xxx)
- 3. A faculty-sponsored internship (INTN 498) arranged between an individual student and faculty member

In addition, there exists a fourth category, the "Cooperative Education Unit" (COOP 499), which offers an **activity credit** based on the number of hours completed at the internships.

The report identified several significant challenges to the program, which we would like to summarize and amplify: 1) The lack of consistent faculty staffing for the internship course (INTN 497) has undermined the program's viability, since in recent semesters interested students have had to be directed away from INTN 497 because no instructor was available. 2) The strengthening and increased popularity of Puget Sound's study abroad opportunities, many of which occur during students' junior year, may impinge on students' desire and ability to pursue an academic internship.

Recommendations

We recommend

- 1. That we accept the AIP report and endorse two of its recommendations:
 - a. Identify a single faculty member (or small pool of faculty) to staff the Internship Seminar (INTN 497) for the next few years. We believe this

- will enhance the continuity and visibility of the program, and address concerns that the academic component of the course is more likely to be considered "engaging" than "rigorous" by those enrolled
- 2. Open enrollment in the course to sophomores (it is currently open only to juniors and seniors), since all prospective interns are vetted by CES for maturity and clarity of purpose.
- 2. That an appropriate faculty body take up the question of how experiential learning, and university credit for it, fits into the broader educational goals of the university.

Discussion

Our discussion of the report, and a meeting we held with Alana Hentges and Kim McDowell, raised for the Working Group a series of broader issues that we find compelling and deserving of broader discussion—issues well beyond the purview of a single subcommittee. The working group realizes that there is unlikely to be full consensus on these topics—in fact, there were differences of opinion among the WG members—but feels that the current climate, in which liberal arts colleges are increasingly depicted as "impractical" or out of touch with economic realities, renders such discussion all the more urgent. To that end, we raise the following issues with the hope that the larger university and its appropriate bodies will begin discussion of how best to serve our students.

We found that in addition to the AIP discussed here, there are a variety of other ways in which students perform experiential learning that complements their academic programs. The variety of opportunities (from academic internships to temporary positions to co-op internships, etc.) allows our students a tremendous breadth of opportunity, but also creates potential confusion and incoherence, as well as the possibility for redundancy, or inconsistency, across departments and programs that offer experiential opportunities under different auspices.

One key question is the extent to which the "Academic Internship" per se remains a viable and effective means of providing essential career or professional experience, given the other professional opportunities available to students. That question is complicated by the fact that employers who offer internship programs increasingly require that students earn college credit for the internship; thus students may be eligible for an internship only if they can enroll for academic credit (AIP report page 6). We applaud the creativity of the "0 unit" summer course approach the AIP review suggests, but are unable to endorse what would effectively be a course that counts one way during the year (as 1.0 unit) and another during the summer session (0.0 units). That said, we recognize the challenge of asking students to register and pay for a unit of summer credit in order to pursue an internship. We recommend further exploration of how comparable institutions are addressing this paradox.

We feel there is a larger question raised by this review about the role, purpose, and place of experiential learning in a liberal arts education as it pertains not only to internships, but also to other non-academic, co-curricular, or professional development. Given the significant pressure on and attention to career placement, we see an opportunity for a

conversation that extends beyond the purview of this single program and report. For example, we currently award "academic credit" and also "activity credit" toward graduation. One possibility raised by our working group was to explore the possibility of creating a third category of credit. Such an "experiential credit" might apply, in limited amounts, toward student graduation requirements, and might create more consistency among internships and perhaps across departments. It would also affirm the value of experiential learning to a Puget Sound education without diluting the academic elements thereof.

Appendix C: Report of the Curriculum Committee on the Art Review April 2013

1

The Curriculum Committee Working Group moves to accept the Art Department's 2012 five-year review.

The Working Group notes the following points regarding the curriculum review:

- 1. The Art Department has made one major curriculum change since their last five-year review: They have introduced a two-track system in their studio art program. Students are now required to choose between a two-dimensional track and a three-dimensional track. The Art Department has also added seven new courses in studio art (one of which is a consolidation of two previous courses) and four new courses in art history. Two of the new courses in art history are first-year seminars, and the other two satisfy the connections core requirement.
- 2. The Working Group is impressed with the syllabi presented by the Art Department. These syllabi include a wide range of sources and assignments, and they clearly show the amount of care the Art Department puts into constructing their courses.
- 3. The Art Department mentions that all of their courses include a writing component. The Working Group notes that some writing assignments in studio art courses can take the form of artist statements or critiques of art works or exhibits, rather than that of the classic research paper.
- 4. The studio art major currently requires eleven units in studio art, which is two units over the university's nine-unit limit in the major field. The Art Department curriculum review statement does not give a strong rationale for this. The art history major requires nine units in the major field and two units in a supporting field (a modern foreign language), which is well under the university's limit on sixteen total units in the major field and supporting fields.
- 5. The Art Department engages in a wide range of activities with respect to diversity. For example, the Department hosts artists from a variety of ethnic and cultural backgrounds. The Department also assigns art works that deal with race, gender,

sexual identity, and religion, as well as works from different cultures and time periods. Faculty members in the Department participate in the Asian Studies, Latin American Studies, and Honors Programs as well. The Art Department faculty are themselves diverse; as they note, the three faculty members in art history represent two genders, come from three different continents, and speak three different native languages.

- 6. The Working Group applauds the Art Department's efforts in assessment. For example, we find the milestone requirement for majors in art history to be a model assessment practice that ensures that all students are meeting expectations in the major. Although the Art Department does not mention this under assessment, the Working Group notes that the juried junior show and the senior exhibition serve a similar function for studio art majors. Finally, the Working Group praises the Department's efforts to collect data on effectiveness in training art history majors.
- 7. Finally, the Working Group commends the Art Department for the large number of its majors who have recently received university-wide accolades, including Wyatt, Slater, Matelich, and writing excellence awards.

Appendix D: Report of the Curriculum Committee on the Biology Review

October 2012

<u>Impression</u>

After thoughtful evaluation and discussion of the Biology Department's Curricular Review, members of the working group find that the Biology Department has done an exemplary job preparing this Curricular Review, articulating a quality educational curriculum for its majors in biology, natural science/biology, and molecular and cell biology; as well as defining its mission and centrality to the University.

For the purpose of evaluating this Curricular Review, it is noteworthy that the Biology Department is not indicating any changes be made at this time to the existing curriculum, or requesting additional university resources to continue implementation of the curriculum.

Since the Biology Department is not requesting that any changes be made to the existing curriculum, or making any request that would be in contrast to current university guidelines, requirements, or standards, the Working Group will not be taking this to the full Curriculum Committee for "approval," per se, but rather for "acceptance" of the Review.

Feedback from the Working Group

The Working Group raised two issues for ongoing consideration by the Biology Department.

1. The Department has been invested in ongoing self-analysis, in part via information obtained from senior surveys collected from majors in the three degree programs. Most of this evaluation data appears to pertain to student impressions of their

experience and preparation in the program. Information obtained doesn't actually speak in a comprehensive way to assessment of learning outcomes. The Department's narrative makes it clear that faculty are aware of the limitations of this information. After thoughtful review, the Working Group would like to both commend the Department for its ongoing introspective efforts and encourage further exploration into what future possibilities or mechanisms may exist to obtain objective and comprehensive student learning outcome information. This is in no way a criticism of current efforts, rather an encouragement to keep the thought processes active regarding how to assess overall curricular learning.

2. This second issue is not something that the Working Group or Curriculum Committee in any way seeks to dictate to the Department. It was noted, however, that there seems to be substantive overlap between the biochemistry major and the molecular and cellular biology major. The Working Group wishes to ask the Biology and Chemistry Departments if there could be some efficiency or perhaps faculty load easing via conversations regarding the essential differences between the two majors and the possibility of some future consolidation of these two majors. Again, this is not a criticism of the review, merely a suggestion based on the observation of outside observers.

Working Group Recommendation to Curriculum Committee

The recommendation of the Working Group is to accept the curriculum review from the Biology Department. At the next meeting of the full Curriculum Committee, Working Group I will submit a motion that the Committee accept the Biology Department Review in its entirety. The recommendation of the Working Group is strictly advisory to the full Curriculum Committee.

Appendix E: Report of the Curriculum Committee on the Education Review

April 2013

We move to accept the 5-year curriculum review submitted by the School of Education. We found it to be thorough, thoughtful, and complete. It is excellent in several respects:

- The School articulates its curricular goals with great eloquence.
- The School's assessment of student learning outcomes is truly exemplary, reflecting both that they are skilled at doing it and that they are forced to do it by statewide assessment requirements.
- The School addresses diversity with depth and sensitivity in the narrative as well as in several of the course syllabi.
- Syllabi are extremely clear, well organized, and bespeak the faculty's attentiveness to the program's overall curricular goals.
- Syllabi for quarter-unit courses (ED 290, 292, 294, and 296) are wonderfully explicit about how their requirements are in keeping with their quarter-unit weight.

Indeed, the only substantive issues that this review raised for the Working Group are not ones for the School of Education to address, but broader ones that the Curriculum Committee might consider taking up next year:

- 1. Should the questions to which the graduate programs (School of Education, OT/PT) respond when conducting curricular reviews be different from those of undergraduate programs? At least two of the questions (i.e., #3, about total units in the major, and #7 about courses that satisfy more than one requirement) were irrelevant to the School of Education review.
- 2. Is the viability of a major or program within the purview of the Curriculum Committee? In discussion, the topic of the School of Education's enrollment challenges came up, as did the prior existence of a task force to determine whether the School should continue at all. This was not mentioned in the School's curriculum review narrative, and the Working Group was undecided about whether this was a glaring omission or merely as it should be, viability being outside of our committee's purview.
- 3. Should the Curriculum Committee concern itself with the relevance of curricula to student recruitment? Since the Puget Sound School of Education is significantly more expensive than its in-state competitors, it seems that the uniqueness of our curriculum might be one of its selling points. If we were to reconfigure the questions asked of graduate programs (#1, above), might we consider asking how the curriculum serves to attract prospective students?

Appendix F: Report of the Curriculum Committee on the Geology Review

May 2012

On behalf of the curriculum committee working group that reviewed your program assessment, we would like to commend your thoughtful work on this document. We were particularly impressed with the clarity and organization of the review, and it is easy to see that the geology department takes great care in ensuring that our students are receiving the most effective education possible. We particularly appreciated the formal and informal ways that you keep in touch with alumni, and it is clear from their survey responses that they are thrilled with their experience of the program, even long after leaving the University. The new courses that you will offer in the coming year address crucially important questions of the day and address important gaps in the University's curriculum. We appreciate your efforts to keep the Bulletin up to date by dropping courses that are no longer offered.

We also appreciated your concern about balancing your contribution to the core with your responsibility to your majors in offering a robust selection of upper division electives in your field. One possible suggestion to alleviate the number of faculty units dedicated to the core is to increase the size of your introductory lectures to 32 students. Clearly there are tradeoffs in this scenario, and we understand that classrooms in which you offer that

lecture present some constraints. However, if two lectures and two associated labs were combined into one lecture and two labs, you would have at least one extra unit to dedicate to other offerings. Of course we understand that this is not an ideal scenario, but it could provide more flexibility for faculty to offer a greater diversity of electives to your majors.

Other than this one point, we were very happy with your review and will be pleased to recommend its approval at the next meeting of the full committee.

Thank you very much for your time and careful attention to this task.

Appendix G: Report of the Curriculum Committee on the Global Development Studies Review

The working group that completed the Global Development Studies review requested additional information from the department, as outlined below. Following receipt of this additional information, the working group recommended approval of the review, including encouragement to the department to continue thinking more concretely about the proposal to conduct more systematic exit surveys with its graduates.

The following is in response to your follow up questions for the GDS curriculum review.

1. Educational Mission. GDS is distinct from Comparative Sociology, Economics or Politics and Government in that it is an expressly interdisciplinary array of courses that share a focus on the problematics and transformations associated specifically with global development. Therefore, it engages multiple disciplinary lenses, theories and debates in courses across the curriculum in order to explore particular regional and thematic issues that are unique to development. By working through diverse methodologies, textual forms, and theoretical models, students hone their ability to analyze the source, nature and effects of the global inequalities and transformations associated with development in a way that goes beyond their training in a single department. Consequently, while there may be many Comparative Sociology courses that take up issues of culture and inequality, only those which engage the particular kinds of difference and inequality associate with development are featured in the designation. Our mission is to help students appreciate and put in conversation the diverse approaches to and understandings of development that come out of their courses both here at UPS and while studying away, in order to grasp a more systematic and holistic understanding of this particular problematic.

Because development is a dynamic process and problematic, the courses within the emphasis take up the evolution of different development concepts and policies. Consequently, current courses within the emphasis engage both the history of development thinking/practice as well as more recent changes to the theories, policies, and programs associated with it. In particular, over the last five years our curriculum has incorporated new courses and new modules within the core courses to acknowledge the importance of microfinance, migration, social capital, corporate social responsibility, environmental sustainability, food security, illicit economic flows, outsourcing, offshore

investment, and global governance within contemporary development policy and theory.

2. Basic knowledge. Within our courses, we seek to provide students with the knowledge to answer such central questions as: What is the historical trajectory of the development idea? What is the meaning of development? What is the relationship between development and Western modernity? How has colonialism shaped the contours of the contemporary world? What indicators have historically been used to measure development? Which institutions and value systems have been central to defining development goals and assessing their outcomes? What is the political significance of development to the modern nation-state? What are the features of the global production system? What is the debt crisis, who is to blame, and what are some possible solutions to the crisis? What are the health and environmental implications of population growth and modern consumption patterns? Which interventions have been most effective at reducing poverty and inequality and improving healthy, sustainable livelihoods? How have particular regions and peoples been impacted by development interventions? In addition to helping students answer these questions, we seek to provide them with a grasp of basic terminology (e.g., structural adjustment, gini coefficient of inequality, Women and Development/Gender and Development), benchmark policies (Millennium Development Goals), and institutions (World Bank, Peace Corp) that are central to development.

Specific skills promoted by the core courses include cross-country comparison of income and population growth, calculating indices of poverty and inequality, assessing the impact of income on educational, health, and environmental outcomes, critically analyzing development policy, especially in regard to its differentiated effect on distinct populations, calculating trade-offs associated with different development models, and designing alternative policy proposals.

- 4b. Interdepartmental Cooperation. The success of the program has not altered course offerings in the departments or programs that contribute courses to it; however, it has spurred conversation among program faculty about how various courses might speak to one another in terms of their specific development focus/content. While there has been growing student demand for more GDS-sponsored events and community, GDS students have not done anything in response to this interest.
- 6. Diversity. The program's global focus means that it assumes an inclusive and global understanding of "our" society, focusing attention on a wide variety of constituencies both in the U.S. and around the world. Indeed, many of the courses take up the issue of how development has operated to define who represents/constitutes "the West" in relation to underdeveloped or non-Western "others." Consequently, the program does not necessarily take a localized "our society" for granted as the starting point for development discussions, but rather seeks to understand how development, as an especially powerful organizing principle, has mandated who is included in universal discourses about society. This means the program critically examines how different ideas and forms of diversity become equated with particular kinds of people and practices both locally and globally.
- 9. Library. Our collaboration with the library has been part of a consistent and continuous

effort to build library resources related to development and to support courses within the GDS designation. For example, in addition to numerous new books purchased over the review period, we have also worked with the library to borrow or permanently acquired the following visual resources to support development courses and particular research projects:

Niger: In the Shadow of Noma

Dark Side of Chocolate

Colombia: Flowers for the Gringo

What Are We Doing Here? Why Western Aid Hasn't Helped Africa

Mauritania: Health Care for Pregnant Women

Missing Women: Female-Selective Abortion and Infanticide

The Right to Femininity: Fighting Female Circumcision in Africa Today

The Biofuel Myth: Harsh Realities in the Developing World

Mali: Message from the River

No Vacancy: Global Responses to the Human Population Explosion

The millenium development goals: dream or reality

Uprooted

10. Assessment. From our review of student curricular trajectories and GPA, we have learned that it is a diverse, highly-motivated, high-performing group of students that is drawn to GDS. Over the course of the last 5 years, we have had GDS students representing over 8 different majors, from CSOC to music to biology. IPE tends to be the major with the highest proportion of GDS students. While students from our original GDS cohorts often declared the emphasis after taking one of the core courses, we find that students are often now seeking out GDS prior to taking those core courses based on their interest in development issues more generally. Despite this information, our evaluations have also highlighted our lack of systematic assessment tools to fully appreciate (a) what main knowledge/skills students are taking away from the courses; and (b) how they anticipate applying the knowledge and skills they have gained from GDS in their post-graduate endeavors. In line with your recommendation, we have considered conducting more systematic exit surveys with graduates in order to begin to compile this information.

Hopefully these responses provide sufficient embellishment and clarification to answer your remaining questions. Please let me know if you have further concerns.

Appendix H: Report of the Curriculum Committee on the History Review

February 2013

The Curriculum Committee Working Group moves to accept the History Department's 2012 five-year review.

The Working Group applauds the thorough and well written document submitted to the committee and notes the following points in particular regarding the curriculum review:

- 1. From the 100 through the 300 levels, a majority of students taking History courses come from outside the major. As noted by the department, this illustrates both the importance of the discipline of history to the broader university, and also the challenges at the upper level of teaching majors and non-majors (without historiographic training) alongside each other.
- 2. Currently there are two methodological courses intended specifically for History majors (and required for the major): History 200 (*Doing History*) and History 400 (the capstone *Research Seminar*). The department has recently added a third course intended to bridge the gap in historiographic training for majors between the 200 and 400 level: History 399, (*Special Topics in History*), although this course is not currently required.
- 3. Over the last five-year period and slightly beyond, the History Department has experienced four retirements, leading to four tenure-line hires. An outcome of this has been the redefinition of one position from a concentration formerly in European history to a concentration in African history. As a result, the department is now able to include African history among its course offerings. As a way to continue offering courses related to European history, the department also now gives credit in History for a number of courses taught within the Science, Technology, and Society program.
- 4. The department describes a variety of ways they evaluate student achievement of learning outcomes. These include student surveys, anecdotal information about plans of graduating seniors, and faculty evaluation of the methods and capstone courses. The working group notes, however, that none of these approaches entail collection and evaluation of objective data on student learning outcomes. The working group encourages the history department to think about ways in which they might include some more objective measures among their regular assessment practices. The department does mention that they hope that "the administration's recent solicitation of 'questions about your majors (particularly seniors) for which you would like to have institutional data' will eventually lead to regular and accessible assessment data gathered by the university that we can consider in our ongoing assessments." Perhaps such data would constitute a more objective measurement to include with the department's current methods for evaluating student achievement of learning outcomes.
- 5. In its review, the department elected to answer the recently formulated wording for question #6 on diversity. (This year, departments may choose either the former wording or the newly worded question). A clear strength of the department is the way in which the department is committed to engaging diversity in multiple forms: in the very nature of the discipline which exposes students to the diversity of their world, in the efforts to recruit students from diverse backgrounds, in the requirement for students to specialize in one of five geographical areas of world history, in the exploration through coursework of different aspects of diversity, including race, ethnicity, class, gender, region, and religion, among other categories.

At the same time, given the new wording of question #6, which asks "how does your department engage diversity in relation to recruitment," the Working Group asked the department to clarify how the department engages diversity in relation to recruitment *not only of students, but of faculty as well*, especially given the four tenure-line searches conducted by the department in recent years. The Working Group received a written reply from the department addressing this topic, (copied below), and we have no further questions.

Addendum to History Curricular Review, Question 6 Diversity/Recruitment.

The sub-committee considering the History Department Curricular Review has pointed out that our reflection on departmental engagement with diversity does not address the issue of faculty recruitment. Since the department cares deeply about this issue, has given it significant discussion, and aspires to future successes in this effort, we welcome the chance to offer this additional reflection.

In the recruitment of new faculty, the diversity that new hires would bring to the department has always been an important consideration, and has invariably been an issue raised at different moments in every search. Our greatest success in recent hires has been the attainment of gender equality; we now have an equal number of women and men in the department.

Hiring faculty of color or who might otherwise bring different cultural or national experiences to the faculty has been more difficult. In our last hire, we were much more deliberate in our efforts, in part because of the nature of the position, and in part because of the formal designation of Nancy Bristow as Diversity Liaison. In her report to the Academic Dean, Nancy writes:

With the official liaison role, I was able to speak not only on behalf of my own interest in diversifying the faculty, or even on behalf of that general interest in our department, but also on behalf of the university and its educational mission. This meant that throughout the search I was able to voice the arguments in favor of considering diversity as a valued element of candidates' possible contributions to the campus with significantly more authority. Again, though, this advocacy role has long been present in our department, and has been carried by several members of the department. The liaison role only gave this voice a new kind of meaning.

We were able to keep a diverse pool of candidates at every stage, including our campus visits, though in the end, we did not diversify our faculty with this search in terms of the identity of our new hire (though we were able to make a substantial contribution to the diversity of the university's curriculum). We feel we have learned much from this search and look forward to continuing our efforts to diversify the faculty in future searches for tenure-track and visiting positions.

Appendix I: Report of the Curriculum Committee on the Honors Review

December 2012

The Working Group met to begin curricular assessment of the Honors Program. The working group reviewed the self-study submitted by Honors Program Director Andrew Rex and course syllabi for the following six courses within the Honors Program:

Honors 101 Seminar in Writing and Rhetoric: New World Rhetorics

Honors 150 European Past Lives: A Seminar in Historical Inquiry

Honors 206 The Arts of the Classical World and the Middle Ages

Honors 211 Literary Odysseys: The Hero's Journey Home

Honors 214 Social Scientific Approaches to Knowing

Honors 410 Some Classics of Asian Civilizations

The current (Andrew Rex) and incoming (Denise Despres) directors of the Honors Program attended a meeting of the full Curriculum Committee on October 30, 2012 to speak first-hand to issues raised in the working group's initial review (see minutes from that meeting for details).

Working Group Findings

The Honors Program is a coordinated series of eight core courses taken over a three-year period and an honors thesis. Rather than enrolling in a stratified random potpourri of core classes, students in the Honors Program take a specified sequence of classes to complete their university core requirements. Since all students in each course have the same prerequisite core course experiences, this allows faculty teaching in the Program to build upon a cascade of known prior coursework and an integrated set of readings.

Based on data presented in the self-study, between graduation years 2008 and 2012 the honors program admitted a mean of 36 students per year. A mean of 56% of those students completed a senior thesis. Since the thesis is stated as an Honors Program requirement, this thesis completion rate translates into a program attrition rate of 44%.

The Honors Program has no stated plans to add new courses at this time. Honors 401 will be revised this year and, since a revision was not included with the curricular review materials, the Program will forward the course revision to the Curriculum Committee at a later date.

Of the six course syllabi reviewed only one contained any information regarding services available to students with disabilities and (in spite of the fact that it was a spring 2012 syllabus) the contact information presented was incorrect and out of date. Two of the syllabi did not contain the university required emergency preparedness and response information.

After initial assessment of the Program's self-study and syllabi, the Honors Program appears to be serving its stated mission "to provide a concentrated set of courses that fulfill the university's core requirement to a common cadre of students."

Working Group Impression

The primary issue that emerged at the working group level of review was the Program's name. While many course sequences exist within majors, the Honors Program is the only sequentially coordinated set of core courses at the university. However, it was unclear why this sequence of core courses is labeled the "Honors Program." The working group became aware of salient cross-campus concerns regarding the designation of a core course sequence as the Honors Program. The current and incoming directors of the Program were invited to the October 30, 2012 meeting of the full Curriculum Committee to speak to this issue. No clear rationale emerged for naming this particular sequence "honors." During that meeting, there was significant discussion regarding alternate naming options for the course sequence. The utility of calling this an "Honors Program" for recruitment purposes was discussed and it was offered that admission yield for students offered a place in the Honors program was 29% compared to an overall undergraduate university admission yield of 20%.

It is the impression of the working group that there exists salient rationale to reconsider the name of the course sequence currently described as the Honors Program. Given that program curricular reviews only occur every five years, this may be an appropriate time to raise the issue with the faculty senate and full faculty.

Working Group Recommendation to Curriculum Committee

The working group recommends that the Committee communicate to the Honors Program Director that syllabi need to be updated to include current and accurate information pertaining to students with disabilities and emergency preparedness and response information.

The recommendation of the working group is to accept the curriculum review from the Honors Program. Further, the working group wishes the full Curriculum Committee to consider whether to recommend in its final report to the Faculty Senate that the name "Honors Program" for this core sequence be reconsidered by the Senate and full faculty, and that alternate names be explored.

The recommendations of the Working Group are strictly advisory to the full Curriculum Committee.

Note from the Curriculum Committee chair: The full committee followed the recommendation from the working group and accepted the curriculum review from the Honors program. The committee did not recommend a reconsideration of the name "Honors Program" at this time.

Appendix J: Report of the Curriculum Committee on the Latin American Studies Review

December 2012

<u>Impression</u>

After thoughtful evaluation and discussion of the Latin American Studies (LAS) program's Curriculum Review, members of the working group find that the Program has done an thorough job preparing this Curricular Review, articulating a quality educational experience for its students, as well as defining its mission and centrality to the University.

For the purpose of evaluating this Curricular Review, it is noteworthy that LAS is not indicating any changes be made at this time to the existing curriculum, or requesting additional university resources to continue implementation of the curriculum.

Since LAS is not requesting that any changes be made to the existing curriculum, or making any request that would be in contrast to current university guidelines, requirements, or standards, the working group will not be taking this to the full Curriculum Committee for "approval," per se, but rather for "acceptance" of the Review.

Feedback from the Working Group

The working group raised a number of issues for ongoing consideration by the faculty of the Latin American Studies program.

1) With the potential for faculty retirement/attrition there is a concern as to whether LAS has a sustainable curriculum. In the program's review document it is stated that "An institutional prioritization of Latin Americanist hires within the Social Sciences is crucial, both for maintaining coverage and currency in the themes and issues of central importance to our area of the world, as well as to maintaining the integrity of the minor program." This is a factor that the working group supports as a consideration when future social science positions become available. However, while this is desirable from the LAS perspective, there is no guarantee that a new social sciences hire would be a Latin Americanist. The working group contacted Monica DeHart, Director of LAS, to see what planning options the LAS program has in mind should new hires with this expertise not occur in the near future. She responded as follows:

"Ideally, we would eventually be able to hire a line within LAS to help solve this problem. Since this is not a realistic option at this moment, we have been working to expand our selection of social science selections with the resources on hand. One way we've done this is to begin to retrofit other courses that LAS faculty in the social sciences teach, adding more Latin America focus/content so that they can be cross-referenced with LAS. In the recent past, we've done this with my CSOC 316 (Social and Cultural Change) course, as well as Nila Wiese's BUS 361 (Business at the Bottom of the Pyramid). These have been very successful experiments, as they have allowed us to engage more "global" issues such as development, while also

expanding within that the place of Latin America as a case or a special focus. Another way we have tried to increase the course options in the social sciences is to include courses like Robin Jacobson's course PG 311 (Detention Politics) that, while not Latin America focused, engage issues that are central to Latin American politics in a transnational sense. Finally, some faculty who have expertise in Latin America but have not taught Latin America-specific courses, are developing new courses that could be included in the LAS catalogue. These include courses by Emelie Peine (IPE), whose expertise in Brazil will form the basis of a new course that she and I will co-teach in the near future: China in Latin America."

The working group feels that with the potential for a Latin Americanist hire in the social sciences and a viable Plan B for LAS should that not occur, LAS has a sustainable plan to continue offering sufficient academic breadth and experiences to its students.

- 2) There is potential development of a Latino Studies program on campus. It is anticipated that LAS will be involved in any such development and carefully address potential overlap of their Politics and Government course options with proposed curriculum of a Latino Studies program.
- 3) LAS utilizes their "Our Americas" award as an opportunity to review their student's body of academic work in the minor. The working group offers the suggestion that evaluation of student materials on this occasion may also serve as an opportunity to annually review the program's curriculum. The working group would also like to encourage LAS to consider ways to follow up with LAS graduates to get a sense as to how undergraduate preparation in this area is being put to use.
- 4) With some LAS students traveling to Mexico to pursue degree-related internship work, in consideration of student safety the working group encourages LAS to stay apprised of current Department of State travel warnings regarding Mexico.
- 5) The LAS review document stated that recent seniors have expressed interest in "a senior-level capstone course to consolidate their knowledge in LAS and their experience in the minor." The working group would like to encourage continued consideration and development of a senior-level capstone course.
- 6) There was inconsistency among LAS course syllabi as to whether they contained required Emergency Response and recommended disability accommodation. The working group recommends that all LAS course syllabi include these elements.

Working Group Recommendation to Curriculum Committee

The recommendation of the Working Group is to accept the curriculum review from the Latin American Studies Program. At the next meeting of the full Curriculum Committee, a representative from Working Group I will submit a motion that the Committee accept the Latin American Studies Program Review in its entirety. The recommendation of the Working Group is strictly advisory to the full Curriculum Committee.

Appendix K: Report of the Curriculum Committee on the Physics Review February 2012

The Physics department addressed the questions from the review guidelines, but more detail would have been helpful in a couple of the responses. The committee requested additional information regarding the department's proposal to eliminate the BA degree and to elaborate on their discussion of diversity in the curriculum. The committee was satisfied with the response pertaining to the elimination of the BA degree. [Note that the BA degree has been discontinued at this time.]

The discussion on diversity in the curriculum brought up an interesting issue of addressing diversity in the science and mathematics disciplines. The department brought up the fact that the diversity question in the review guidelines states "In what ways does the curriculum in your department, school, or program reflect the diversity of our society." This brings up the question of what the curriculum committee means by "curriculum". Some interpret this as strictly course subject matter, which would have limited impact on diversity discussion in science and math departments. The bigger question was brought up to the committee of whether this was really the question we want to be asking the departments in the curriculum review, and if we should revise the question before asking departments to elaborate on a question that was not directly asked in the guidelines. Given the debate still ongoing with the diversity question in the guidelines, the committee agreed that the department's response to the question asked was satisfactory and recommends approval of the departmental review.

The working group therefore recommends acceptance of the Physics review.

Appendix L: Report of the Curriculum Committee on the Special Interdisciplinary Major Review

April 2013

The Special Interdisciplinary Major (SIM) is unique in that faculty teach in this area only if they have worked with an interested student to create a special major that has been approved by the Curriculum Committee.

In evaluating this major, we reviewed Curriculum Action Reports and student transcripts provided by the registrar. We surveyed faculty who advised a SIM in the past. These activities serve as the basis for our report.

Review of Curriculum Action Reports

Curriculum Action Reports (CAR) serve as an agreement between the Curriculum Committee and the student undertaking a SIM. CARs show the name of the student and the title of the SIM. They declare if the major is a Bachelor of Arts or a Bachelor of Science, list the advisor and committee members (with their respective departments), outline the courses to be taken by the student, show when the study was approved, and list ways in which changes to the course of study can be changed.

Fifteen SIMs have been approved by the Curriculum Committee since 1997.*** Three additional proposals were submitted but not approved. There are no current students with approved SIMs.

Effective Date	SIM Title	Units	Degree
1997	Environmental Policy	18 BA	
1998	Languages	15	BA
1998	Western Tradition of Art	12 (plus 3 prior	BA?
	and Music	courses)	
2000	Environmental Policy	21	*Decision
			Deferred
2001	Medieval and Renaissance	14	BA
	Studies		
2002	Gender and Authority	19	BA
2003	Biochemistry	16 (plus 3.5	BS
		recommended	
2004	Religion and Literature	13	BA
2005	Cognition and Brain	16	BA
	Science		
2005	Neurobiological Behavior	15	BS
2005	Religious Literature of	19	BA
	Ancient Societies		

^{***} We have 15 CARs and 14 transcripts.

*

2008	Criminology	11 (plus 3 BA	
		courses abroad)	
2009	Human Ecology and	17	BA
	Communication		
2009	Anthropology of the	15	BA
	Performing Arts		
2011	The Politics of Health Care	12	BA

The ratio of female to male students, both who applied for and who graduated with SIMs is almost 2:1.

Student cumulative GPAs ranged from 3.24 to 3.93.

The Average GPA was 3.5 with a medium GPA of 3.54

Of the students who graduated with a SIM, 12 received A grades in their SIM 490 (Senior Project) course and two received Bs. The fifteenth SIM is not accounted for with a transcript.

Observations

- SIMs are relatively rare at Puget Sound.
- In their unit requirements, SIMs tend to demand more than a typical major.
- There are no guidelines helping proposers to decide whether a SIM should be designated as a BA or a BS.

Following our review of documents, we created lists of potential costs and benefits to maintaining the SIM. We then created a survey instrument to ask advisors about the reality of our impressions.

Survey of Advisors

We received five responses from faculty (representing 6 SIMs) who had advised SIMs or sat on a SIM committee.

- All respondents affirmed that, given the right student, they would advise a SIM again.
- All commented about how much the success of the program depended on the student's motivation and follow-through.
- Three of the responses described that the downside to the process is that students can lose momentum near the end, or "fall through the cracks" if coursework plans go awry.
- One respondent noted that at least one meeting of the full faculty committee was critical to maintaining the rigor of the program. (This comment came from the only responder who was not the direct advisor of the SIM but rather a committee member.)

- All the SIM advisors listed benefits to students, especially: preparation in fields the student wished to pursue, obtaining of post-graduation fellowships, and acceptance into graduate school.
- No respondent listed any particular benefits for them in their own teaching.

Based on our review of documents and the results of the survey, we have the following observations about the SIM at Puget Sound.

Observations

Negatives

- Faculty time for SIM work is not counted against overall faculty load and can create pressure on faculty resources. It can be difficult to say no to a SIM candidate.
- Faculty time must be given to creating SIM proposals, and to approving or not approving proposals.
- o The registrar must set up individualized degree progress reports
- Small departments might be negatively impacted by the loss of potential majors.
- There exists the potential for student isolation, particularly around the senior project. There is little opportunity for a cohort experience around thesis writing. This is perhaps analogous to taking an independent study rather than taking a class.
- o If the advisor goes on leave during the student's senior year, the student must find an alternative advisor who might not have the content expertise.
- Opting for a SIM could force the student to adopt a narrow focus in their course of study too early (many of the SIM topics seemed narrower than typical majors).

Positives

- Enthusiasm/motivation for the student
- o SIMs can advance specific professional or graduate school goals
- SIMs allow for retention of students who might decide to attend another university that offers the more tailored degree they seek.
- o SIMs allow for flexibility in the University curriculum.
- SIMs provide for interdisciplinarity in a way that traditional majors might not.
- SIMs might push the University faculty to consider holes in our offerings.
 Topics of some past SIMs suggested trends in student interest (e.g. two Environmental Policy SIMs; two Neuroscience SIMs).
- SIM guidelines and requirements seem sufficiently rigorous and demanding.
 The system is available for the motivated student and faculty, but seems daunting enough to discourage proposals that are not well-considered or that replicate existing programs.
- No clear guidelines exist for how a committee proceeds once a SIM is approved. That is, we found no systematic way to make sure that students

are following through and that members of the faculty committee are in communication with one another.

Recommendations:

- Maintain the SIM option for motivated students and faculty
- Maintain the current rigorous requirements
- Modify the SIM process to include guidelines for committee and student coordination.
- In the SIM proposal, recommendations regarding the granting of a BA or BS should at minimum address: 1) the type of degree typically granted by the disciplines represented or for a similar degree at other universities; and (if a BS is proposed) 2) the extent to which the proposed SIM prepares the candidate to do advanced research.

On May 02, 2013, an additional change to the SIM proposal guidelines was approved. The language that was added to the guidelines read as follows:

The application will include a letter from each faculty member on the proposed SIM advisory committee evaluating the merits of the proposal and specifically addressing the following:...a plan for how frequently the student, advisor, and full committee will meet. Full committee should meet at least once per year, excluding their presence at the student's public presentation of research.

Appendix M: Report of the Curriculum Committee on the Fine Arts Approaches Core Review April 2012

Current Language	Proposed Language
Fine Arts Approaches Core	Artistic Approaches Core

Rationale: Our review found that students seem confused as to what constitutes the "Fine Arts" within this core requirement. We believe that changing the name of the core area will clarify for students that this core area will introduce them to modes of thought and expression that are primarily creative and artistic. The revised name for the core area emphasizes the notions of "approaches" and methods over issues of content.

Current Language	Proposed Language
Students in Fine Arts Approaches courses	Students in Artistic Approaches courses
acquire an understanding and appreciation	develop a critical, interpretive, and
of an artistic tradition and develop their	analytical understanding of art through the
skills in the critical analysis of art.	study of an artistic tradition.

Rationale: Several respondents expressed concern over the use of the term "appreciation," which has a variety of resonances. While many faculty found the term "appreciation" relevant to the kind of informed engagement their courses require, others felt the term unintentionally trivialized the critical and contextual elements of their classes and implied merely passive enjoyment rather than a sophisticated interaction.

Current Language	Proposed Language
The Fine Arts include the visual,	The Fine Arts include the visual,
performing, and literary arts. Courses in	performing, and literary arts. Courses in
Fine Arts Approaches may either be in the	Artistic Approaches may be historical or
history of art or in artistic creation.	<u>creative in emphasis</u> .

Perhaps the most contested issue for this core area is the inclusion of courses in literature (which is significantly represented in the HM core, as well, leading to confusion as to what distinguishes literary study as a "FN" vs. an "HM" approach). Some faculty members felt strongly that, in general, the inclusion of literature courses (all of which are currently provided by the English Department) dilutes the coherence of the core requirement, especially since Literature is not historically considered one of the Fine Arts. Some English faculty expressed a similar concern. They suggested that their courses did not naturally suit this core area and commented that they found teaching Fine Arts Core classes to be problematic. Other faculty expressed support for the inclusion of literature courses as an effective component of the core. The Working Group notes that literature faculty have designed several courses whose content and approach address effectively the existing guidelines and methods, and that there are members of the faculty whose scholarly emphases lend themselves less disruptively to the rubric. —In addition, the Curriculum Committee has just approved a new FN Core Course, English 211, which emphasizes the performative, aesthetic, and creative dimensions of literature.

A second key area of concern involves staffing of FN core courses. Faculty noted that FN courses tend to have consistently higher enrollments than other core courses. Therefore, in cases where the course fulfills both core and major requirements, the demands of the core can interfere with the departmental need to guarantee enough seats for majors. This practical concern creates a conflict between, on one hand, the need to focus the core area for the sake of coherence in the core area and, on the other hand, the demand for multiple sections offered by overstretched departments. At this point, literature courses are essential to staffing the core area, and some faculty were concerned that practical demands were overriding the need for intellectual coherence in this part of the university's core curriculum.

Current Language	Proposed Language
Courses in Fine Arts Approaches examine	Courses in Artistic Approaches examine
significant developments and	significant developments <u>in</u> and
representative works of an artistic tradition.	representative works of an artistic tradition.
These courses introduce students to	These courses provide opportunities for
methods of aesthetic and formal analysis	informed engagement with an artistic
and require students to reflect critically,	<u>tradition</u> and require students to reflect

both orally and in writing about art and the	critically, both orally and in writing, about	
creative process.	art and the creative process.	

Several faculty members felt strongly that the goal of the FN core was to encourage students to spend time experiencing a significant artistic tradition and acquiring the tools to understand its unique value. We propose this change to highlight the significance and centrality of such encounters, whether they occur through reception or production, and to emphasize the emotional and intellectual transformation that the arts promote. At the same time, our change emphasizes the place of these courses, which produce an informed and knowledgeable response to the arts, in the wider university curriculum.

Appendix N: Report of the Curriculum Committee on the Humanistic Approaches Core Review April 2012

Working Group 1 provides the following recommendation and comments to the Curriculum Committee regarding the Humanistic Core review:

- 1. We recommend that all Humanistic Core syllabi provide a specific explanation of how the course fulfills the rubric of the Core category. We note this requirement already exists in the current Core Course Proposal Form. We also note that the Curriculum Committee must decide how to implement such requirement.
- 2. We note that many Humanistic Core syllabi lack the required Emergency Procedure language. We understand that this is not a curricular matter but suggest that a reminder should be sent out to faculty. We also note that we are unclear as to how such reminder would be implemented.
- 3. The Working Group had significant conversation regarding the real and potential challenges posed by the appropriateness of the scope and breadth of the current Humanistic Core rubric.
- 4. Given the large number of Humanistic Core faculty invited to respond to requests for review information, and the very low response rate, we are left to wonder why and what positions, perceptions, or priorities this absence reflects.

For reference, this Working Group, coordinated by invaluable assistance, sent 49 electronic surveys to Core faculty. Eleven responded. We then sent a discussion date and location to the same 49 faculty. Two responded as "maybes;" none attended.

Appendix O: Report of the Curriculum Committee on the Connections Core Review

March 2013

Stage one: reviewing syllabi

In the first stage of our review, the working group examined syllabi of current and former courses taught in the Connections Core while also approving newly incoming syllabi. At this stage, we were struck by the greatly varying ways in which people addressed the Connections Core guideline to "participate in cross-disciplinary dialogue." We noticed three different ways people design their Connections Core courses to respond to this criterion (quoted phrases are from the Connections Core guidelines):

- a) most explicitly, a few Connections courses are team taught by professors in different disciplines, literally *embodying* the guideline to "participate in cross-disciplinary dialogue" around a subject.
- b) in a few courses, the goal of cross-disciplinary dialogue is explicitly maintained, but taught by a single professor with interdisciplinary expertise (e.g. a course that has separate lab days for the scientific portion of the course, and other writing workshop days for the humanities portion of the course).
- c) in many courses, a single professor from a singular discipline draws on "multiple disciplinary approaches" to examine a single subject, thus "exploring the integration or synthesis of these approaches to foster understanding of the subject" (e.g. a history course that draws upon sociology and literature to better contextualize a topic in history). This is perhaps the most common, but least "cross-disciplinary" approach to the Connections Core.

In a few cases, we encountered course proposals that did not explicitly or adequately define the "multiple disciplinary approaches to a subject" to be explored in the class.

Recommendation:

In order to bring explicit attention to a necessary ingredient in Connections Core classes, we recommend that all future course proposals for Connections Core classes be required to respond to the question: "What multiple disciplinary approaches to a subject are you bringing together in the course, and how?" This question should be added to the course proposal form, and should be addressed in the proposer's cover letter.

Stage two: reviewing questionnaires

In the second stage of our review, we read the 18 responses we received to a questionnaire emailed to all faculty teaching in the Connections Core. At this stage, a common theme among many responders was the perceived value of the Connections Core both to professors and to students. As one professor remarked, echoing several others, "the Connections courses are among the most rewarding and enjoyable that I have been involved in." Another professor stated, "When I first came to UPS I thought the Connections requirement sounded interesting, but was a bit unsure as to actual value. So I gave it a shot. It is the best mutual learning experience I have had at UPS. I am glad to be teaching

this course." We encountered enough responses of this kind to indicate that the Connections Core serves an important purpose at Puget Sound; we therefore advocate keeping the Connections Core in place, at least in some form.

There were some criticisms of the Connections Core among the questionnaires. These were echoed during the interviews with faculty who teach in the Connections Core, and so we discuss these in the next section.

Stage three: interviewing faculty

On February 28, 2013, we facilitated a discussion with faculty who teach in the Connections Core; six faculty attended the discussion along with three faculty from our working group. Here, more critical comments were voiced regarding the Connections Core, which amplified some of the comments we received in our questionnaires. In the meeting, we even heard the idea expressed that the Connections core "is broken, and should be thrown out, because it's not a capstone; it's a sham." Upon further discussion, three major concerns were raised:

- 1. The first concern relates to the idea that there is a structural contradiction built into the Connections core rubric, which calls for courses to be taught "at a level of sophistication expected of an upper division course." As one professor wrote in an email: "To meaningfully engage in the material at a university level commensurate with a 300 level class (or 400 level class, as the case may be), a great deal of ground work must be covered (and learned by students) before any real headway can be made. Unless these courses are supposed to be perpetually geared towards an introductory level in all disciplines encountered or if they are merely supposed to be primarily entertainment, then I am not convinced that this model truly works to 'develop their understanding of the interrelationship of fields of knowledge by exploring connections and contrasts between various disciplines with respect to disciplinary methodology and subject matter' . . . to bring some students up to speed requires boring the others who have already studied in the discipline being engaged. If I skip that part and teach 'to the top' part of the class, the Connections class seems like a poorly advertised experience." Other faculty remarked that it's impossible to teach a 300-level connections course, because it's impossible to bring students up to speed to the 300-level in their discipline. Still others remarked that they teach interdisciplinary courses at all levels, so why not offer Connections courses at the 200-level?
- 2. A second concern was raised about the high enrollment cap in Connections courses that are team-taught. While team-teaching was regarded by many attendees as the ideal model for incorporating "cross-disciplinary dialogue," several voiced the opinion that courses with 44 students are a major disincentive for faculty to engage in team teaching.
- 3. A final concern is that, whether because of the high enrollment cap or because many faculty are simply uncomfortable teaching outside of their discipline, not enough

Connections Core courses are being offered. This forces some students to take courses they aren't actually interested in.

Recommendations:

- 4. We recommend that more Connections Core courses be offered.
- 5. We recommend that the enrollment cap of 44 for team-taught Connections courses be lowered to 32. This will encourage more faculty to participate in team-taught Connections Core courses. That in turn will help the Connections Core courses that are taught to be more explicitly interdisciplinary. It should also increase the number of Connections Core courses that are offered.
- 6. We recommend the exploration of additional ways to facilitate the collaborative teaching and development of Connections courses. How can faculty best be supported as they take the anxiety-provoking step of teaching outside of their disciplines in this core?

Given the vehemence of the criticisms we heard from some faculty, we recommend that a task-force be formed to undertake an in-depth review of the Connections Core, in a manner similar to the recent review of the first-year seminars. One issue the task force should consider is whether some Connections Core courses should be offered at the sophomore level. Currently there is no part of the core explicitly aimed at sophomores; changing this might help with retention.

We look forward to the Curriculum Committee's review of the entire Core Curriculum, currently scheduled for 2013-14, particularly as it pertains to the role of the Connections Core in relation to the entire Core.

Appendix P: Report of the Curriculum Committee on the Social Scientific Approaches Core Review April 2013

Outline of the Process

During the Fall semester, the original members of the working group reviewed course syllabi; reviewed the 2012 Senior Survey results, provided by the Office of Institutional Research (OIR), related to the Social Scientific Approaches Core; and surveyed faculty who teach in this area of the core. Two of the three members of the working group were on leave in Spring 2013, so other Curriculum Committee members completed the Core Area review. These final steps included scheduling a meeting with the Social Scientific Approaches Core faculty and writing the final report.

Social Scientific Approaches Core Rubric

The rubric that was considered throughout this review read as follows:

LEARNING OBJECTIVES

The social sciences provide systematic approaches to understanding relationships that arise among individuals, organizations, or institutions. Students in a course in the Social Scientific Approach to Knowing acquire an understanding of theories about individual or collective behavior within a social environment and of the ways that empirical evidence is used to develop and test those theories.

GUIDELINES

- I. Courses in Social Scientific Approaches A. explore assumptions embedded in social scientific theories and B. examine the importance of simplifying or describing observations of the world in order to construct a model of individual or collective behavior.
- II. Courses in Social Scientific Approaches require students to apply a social scientific theory as a way of understanding individual or collective behavior.

Review of the Syllabi

After careful consideration of the syllabi, the working group concluded that significant variation exists among syllabi as to how explicitly, or in what capacity, each course contributes to the rubric, but that they do all meet the objectives and guidelines. There is also considerable inconsistency as to whether syllabi include the University required language on Emergency Procedures or the recommended information to students regarding accommodations for students with disabilities. Based on syllabi review, it is the working group's impression that the syllabi meet the intent and letter of the current rubric.

Review of the Senior Survey

OIR conducts an annual survey of graduating seniors. Each year, the survey includes questions about one or more of the core areas. In Spring 2012, the survey asked about the Social Scientific Approaches core area. OIR analysis of the resulting data concluded: "Social scientific core courses are...meeting the goals of the curriculum statement. Faculty are providing critical demonstrations of the assumptions embedded in social scientific theories; students are learning about constructs related to the individual and the collective; students are taking concepts and applying them to academic and non-academic settings. Concepts in social sciences courses are deeply impacting how students interact with the world around them."

Survey of the Faculty

The working group created a survey and sent it to 34 faculty members who currently teach, or who have recently taught, in the Social Scientific Approaches Core area. Twelve faculty members responded. Seven did not feel that anything in the rubric needed to be changed and that their courses met the objectives and guidelines of the rubric. The others had some suggestions but they did not indicate strong feelings about the rubric needing revision, and one stated that she felt her course met "the spirit of the rubric" even without changes to the language of the rubric.

The comments from faculty included the following:

 Uncertainty about underclassmen having the skills needed to fully understand how empirical evidence contributes to theory

- A desire to more clearly differentiate between objectives and guidelines
- A suggestion that the rubric more clearly emphasize the importance of critical reading and analysis

Meeting with the Faculty

The working group invited core area faculty to a discussion of the core area and rubric on April 23, 2013. Most faculty members did not respond to the invitation, and none attended the meeting.

Recommendations

- The spring working group members carefully considered the information gathered throughout this process and concluded that the rubric, as currently written, is achieving its goals. Overall, faculty and students are satisfied with this Core area, so no changes to the rubric are recommended.
- Faculty teaching in the core area should be asked to consider whether students would benefit from having information in their syllabi that more closely links individual course objectives and the core area learning objectives. However, the working group believes that faculty members are the best judges of this, and does not recommend mandating language or a particular format for syllabi.

Appendix Q: Administrative Curriculum Action: 2012-2013

Date	Course Number	Course Title	Action Taken
8/13/12	COMM 498A	Editorial Internship – Rhetoric Society Quarterly	New course, .5 unit.
8/15/12	BUS 493A	Organizational Behavior	New course. New section of Special Topics.
8/28/12	BUS 407A	Consumption Science	New course.
9/11/12	PHIL 109	Life, Death, and Meaning	Course reinstated.
9/13/12	NRSC 450A	Neuroendocrinology of the Brain: Pathways and Perturbations	New course. New section of Special Topics in Neuroscience
9/25/12	REL 211	Islam in America	Move to Humanistic Approaches core.
9/26/12	AFAM 304	Capital and Captivity	Number change: AFAM 304. Cross-listed as REL 304.
9/26/12	GEOL 324	Biogeochemical Approaches to Environmental Science	New course. Cross-listed as ENVR 324.
9/26/12	HIST 363	Americans, Catastrophe, and Culture in the Twentieth and Twenty-first Centuries	New course.
9/26/12	HIST 392	Men and Women in Colonial Africa	New course.
9/26/12	HON 401	The Self and The Other in Postmodernity	New course. Satisfies Honors Connections core requirement.
9/26/12	REL 212	The Religion of Islam	Move to Humanistic Approaches core.
9/26/12	REL 222	Jihad and Islamic Fundamentalism	Move to Connections core.
9/26/12	REL 304	Capital and Captivity	New course; cross-listed as AFAM 304.
9/26/12	SPAN 402	Seminar in Colonial and/or Nineteenth-Century Latin America	Title change: Seminar in Nineteenth-Century Latin America.
9/28/12	HIST 293	Early Africa to 1807	New course. Satisfies Humanistic Approaches core requirements.
10/08/12	ARAB 102	Elementary Arabic	New course. Does not apply to Asian Studies designation.
10/8/12	BUS 493C	Special Topics: Leadership in a Global Context	New course. New section of Special Topics, letter designation C.
10/08/12	HIST 393	Missions and Christianity in Africa	New course.
10/09/12	ENVR 324	Tools and Topics in Environmental	New course. Cross-listed

		Science	as GEOL 324.
10/09/12	GEOL 305	Earth History	New prerequisite: GEOL 101, 104, and 110 and GEOL 200
10/09/12	GEOL 315	Energy Resources	New course, cross-listed with ENVR 315. Lab section W 19:00 to 20:50.
10/09/12	GEOL 324	Biogeochemical Approaches to Environmental Science	New course. Cross-listed ENVR 324.
10/09/12	PG 360	Israel, Palestine and the Politics of the Middle East	New course.
10/09/12	PG 361	Iran and the Politics of the Persian Gulf	New course.
10/10/12	THTR 485A	Special Topics in Theatre: Ugly Beauty	New course. New section of Topics in Theatre Arts.
10/11/12	BUS 102	Leadership in American History	New course. Meets the SSCI core requirement.
10/11/12	STS 347	Better Living Through Chemistry: Studies in the History and Practice of Chemistry	New course. Satisfies the Connections core requirement.
10/12/12	ENGL 133C / SSI 1 133	Not Just Fun and Games: Sport and Society in the Americas	New course. Meets the Seminar in Writing and Rhetoric core requirement. Meets the SSI 1 core requirement.
10/15/12	CONN 345	Economics of Happiness	New course. Meets the Connections core requirement.
10/16/12	ENVR 315	Energy Resources	New course, cross-listed with GEOL 315. Lab section W 19:00 to 20:50.
10/17/12	BUS 493D	Special Topics: Doing Business in Europe	New course. New section of Special Topics, letter designation D.
10/18/12	CSCI 471	Mathematical Modeling	Removed from curriculum.
10/22/12	ENGL 471A	Special Topics in Writing, Rhetoric, and Culture: The Rhetoric of Literacy	New section of Special Topics for Spring 2013.
10/22/12	SSI 1 103	Alexander the Great	New course. Meets the SSI 1 core requirement.
10/22/12	SSI 1 104	Why Travel: Tales from Far and Wide	New course. Meets the SSI 1 core requirement.
10/22/12	SSI 1 105	Imagining the American West	New course. Meets the SSI 1 core requirement.
10/22/12	SSI 1 106	Cleopatra: History and Myth	New course. Meets the SSI 1 core requirement.

10/22/12	SSI 2 103	Alexander the Great	New course. Meets the
1		7.110.1111.1110 C.10111	SSI 2 core requirement.
10/23/12	ENVR 355	Thinking About Biodiversity:	New course. Meets the
		Biodiversity and Conservation in	Connections core
		Borneo.	requirement.
10/23/12	HUM 260	It's Only Rock and Roll: Rock from	New course. Meets the
		Cradle to Adolescence	Humanistic Approaches
			core requirement.
10/23/12	SSI 1 101	Dionysus and the Art of the Theatre	New course. Meets the
			SSI 1 core requirement.
10/23/12	SSI 1 107	Leadership in American History	New course. Meets the
			SSI 1 core requirement.
10/23/12	SSI 1 108	Empowering Technologies: Energy in	New course. Meets the
		the 21 st Century	SSI 1 core requirement.
10/23/12	SSI 1 130	Lies, Secrets, and Power	New course. Meets the
		, ,	SSI 1 core requirement.
10/23/12	SSI 2 101	Dionysus and the Art of the Theatre	New course. Meets the
		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	SSI 2 core requirement.
10/24/12	AFAM 360	The Art and Politics of the Civil Rights	New course. Satisfies the
- 0, - 1,		Era	Connections core
			requirement.
10/24/12	HIST 365	Famous Trials	New course.
10/24/12	SSI 1 102	Rhetoric and Religion	New course. Satisfies the
10/21/12	5511102	Tallotorie and rongron	SSI 1 core requirement.
10/24/12	SSI 1 109	Rhetoric, Film, and National Identity	New course. Satisfies the
10/21/12	551110)	Tallotorio, I min, una I tallonar Identity	SSI 1 core requirement.
10/24/12	SSI 1 111	Life, Death, and Meaning	New course. Satisfies the
10/2 1/12		2110, 2 04111, 4110 1124111118	SSI 1 core requirement.
10/24/12	SSI 1 112	Salsa, Samba, and Soccer: Popular	New course. Satisfies the
10/21/12	5511112	Culture in Latin America	SSI 1 core requirement.
10/24/12	SSI 1 135	An Unnatural Disaster: Hurricane	New course. Satisfies the
10/21/12	5511155	Katrina	SSI 1 core requirement.
10/26/12	HIST 345	U.S. – China Relations in the 20 th	New course.
10/20/12	11151 3 13	Century: The Era of the Chinese Civil	Trew course.
		War and the Korean War	
10/30/12	SSI 1 110	Dogs	New course. Satisfies the
- 0, 0 0,		- 36"	SSI 2 core requirement.
10/30/12	SSI 2 102	Rhetoric and Religion	New course. Satisfies the
			SSI 2 core requirement.
10/30/12	SSI 2 104	Travel Writing and The Other	New course. Satisfies the
		5	SSI 2 core requirement.
10/30/12	SSI 2 105	Imagining the American West	New course. Satisfies the
			SSI 2 core requirement.
10/30/12	SSI 2 106	Cleopatra: History and Myth	New course. Satisfies the
			SSI 2 core requirement.
10/30/12	SSI 2 107	Leadership in American History	New course. Satisfies the
		1	SSI 2 core requirement.
10/20/10	SSI 2 108	Empowering Technologies: Energy in	New course. Satisfies the
10/30/12			

10/30/12	SSI 2 109	Rhetoric, Film, and National Identity	New course. Satisfies the
			SSI 2 core requirement.
10/30/12	SSI 2 110	Dogs	New course. Satisfies the
			SSI 2 core requirement.
10/30/12	SSI 2 111	Life, Death, and Meaning	New course. Satisfies the
		_	SSI 2 core requirement.
10/30/12	SSI 2 112	Salsa, Samba, and Soccer: Popular	New course. Satisfies the
		Culture in Latin America	SSI 2 core requirement.
10/30/12	SSI 2 130	Lies, Secrets, and Power	New course. Satisfies the
10/00/10	997.0.105		SSI 2 core requirement.
10/30/12	SSI 2 135	An Unnatural Disaster: Hurricane	New course. Satisfies the
10/21/10	CCI 1 114	Katrina	SSI 2 core requirement.
10/31/12	SSI 1 114	Understanding High Risk Behavior	New course. Satisfies the
10/31/12	SSI 1 122	Estania? Landscape History and	SSI 1 core requirement. New course. Satisfies the
10/31/12	331 1 122	Ectopia? Landscape, History, and Identity in the Pacific Northwest	SSI 1 core requirement.
10/31/12	SSI 2 114	Understanding High Risk Behavior	New course. Satisfies the
10/31/12	551 2 114	Onderstanding ringh Kisk Behavior	SSI 2 core requirement.
10/31/12	SSI 2 122	Ectopia? Landscape, History, and	New course. Satisfies the
10/31/12	551 2 122	Identity in the Pacific Northwest	SSI 2 core requirement.
11/9/12	ART 201	Visual Concepts II	New title: Intermediate
11,7,12	201	, isom concepts if	Drawing and Design.
11/9/12	ART 350	Intermediate Painting and Drawing	New title: Intermediate
			Painting.
11/9/12	CONN 478	Animals, Law, and Society	Prerequisite change: junior
			or senior standing.
			Recommended: any law or
			legal studies course.
11/13/12	BUS 493L	Special Topics: Sports Law	New section of Special
			Topics. Prerequisite: BUS
			340 or permission of
11/12/12	CCOC 407	Delicient Feeters	instructor.
11/13/12 11/13/12	CSOC 407 IPE 407	Political Ecology Political Ecology	Cross-listed with IPE 407.
11/13/12	IPE 407	Political Ecology	New course; cross-listed with CSOC 407.
11/21/12	HON 150	History and the Construction of the	New title: European Past
11/21/12	11011 150	Other	Lives. New description.
11/21/12	IPE 311	Political Economy of Third World	New title: Political
		Development Development	Economy of International
		1	Development
11/26/12	HIST 317	European Intellectual History 19 th and	Course reinstated.
		20 th Centuries	
1/16/13	SSI 1 118	Doing Gender	New course. Meets SSI 1
			core requirements.
1/16/13	SSI 2 118	Doing Gender	New course. Meets SSI 2
			core requirements.
1/17/13	ENVR 322	Water Policy	New prerequisite: ENVR

			101 or normission of
			101 or permission of instructor. Removed from
			Connections core.
1/17/13	SSI 1 115	Lucasina Disalmasa	New course. Meets SSI 1
1/1//13	3311113	Imaging Blackness	
1/17/12	001.2.115	Lucada a Disabasas	core requirements.
1/17/13	SSI 2 115	Imaging Blackness	New course. Meets SSI 2
0/4/10	GGI 1 120		core requirements.
2/4/13	SSI 1 120	Hagia Sophia: From the Emperor's	New course. Meets the
2/4/12	GGI 2 120	Church to the Sultan's Mosque	SSI 1 core requirements.
2/4/13	SSI 2 120	Hagia Sophia: From the Emperor's	New course. Meets the
2/6/12	EDITO (02	Church to the Sultan's Mosque	SSI 2 core requirements.
2/6/13	EDUC 603	Leadership and School Transformation	New title: Leadership and
			School Counseling. Must
			be taken concurrently with
			Practicum and Internship
2/6/12	EDUC 617	Deletionship Counceline	in Counseling 647/648.
2/6/13	EDUC 617	Relationship Counseling	New course.
2/6/13	EDUC 635	Relationship and Family Counseling	New title: Family
			Counseling. New
2/6/12	EDIIC (27	Total	description.
2/6/13	EDUC 637	Tests and Measurements	New title: Assessment in
2/6/12	EVGC 404	D (A1 ' C II I 1	Counseling.
2/6/13	EXSC 424	Recent Advances in Cellular and	New course. Prerequisite:
		Molecular Mechanisms of	EXSC 220, 221, and 222,
		Neuromuscular Plasticity	or consent of instructor.
			Recommended: NRSC 201.
2/11/13	ENGL 485	Literature and Gender	New number and title: 360
2/11/13	ENGL 483	Literature and Gender	Medieval Women Writers
2/11/13	THTR 379	World Theatre 3: Voices of the	New course.
2/11/13	1H1K 3/9	Americas	New course.
2/11/13	PHIL 285	Morality and the Environment	New title: Environmental
2/11/13	PHIL 283	Moranty and the Environment	
2/12/13	SSI1/SSI2 170	Domenactives, Chase Dless and Values	Ethics. New description.
2/12/13	3311/3312 170	Perspectives: Space, Place, and Values	New course. Satisfies the SSI 1 or SSI 2 core
2/13/13	SSI 1 190	Translation on Stage Language	requirement. New course. Satisfies the
2/13/13	3311 190	Translation on Stage: Language, Culture, and Genre	SSI core requirement.
2/12/12	CCI 2 100		New course. Satisfies the
2/13/13	SSI 2 190	Sources and Adaptations	
2/14/12	STS 338	Append Appels 1790 1992	SSI 2 core requirement. New course.
2/14/13		Apes and Angels, 1789-1882	
2/15/13	BUS 493	Special Topics: International Management: A Gender-Based	New course. New section
		Perspective	of Special Topics.
2/27/12	0011/0010 117		Now course Satisfies the
2/27/13	SSI1/SSI2 116	Communicating Forgiveness and	New course. Satisfies the
2/20/12	CCI 1 104	Revenge Utonio (Dystonio	SSI core requirements.
2/28/13	SSI 1 124	Utopia/Dystopia	New course. Satisfies the
2/20/12	CCI 1 10F	Now Would Dhatarias	SSI 1 core requirement.
2/28/13	SSI 1 125	New World Rhetorics	New course. Satisfies the

			Honors SSI 1 core
			requirement.
2/28/13	SSI 1 129	Mao's China: A Country in Revolution	New course. Satisfies the
		-	SSI 1 core requirement.
2/28/13	SSI 2 155	Honors: European Past Lives	New course. Satisfies the
			Honors SSI 2 core
			requirement.
2/28/13	SSI1/SSI2 126	Gender, Literacy, and International	New course. Satisfies the
		Development	SSI core requirement.
2/28/13	SSI1/SSI2 128	The Philosophy and Science of Human	New course. Satisfies the
		Nature	SSI core requirement.
2/28/13	SSI1/SSI2 139	The Third Wave: Rock After the	New course. Satisfies the
2/20/42	GGY1 /GGY2 1 10	Beatles	SSI core requirements.
2/28/13	SSI1/SSI2 140	Electric Bodies: Experiment in the Age	New course. Satisfies the
2/1/12	001.1.126	of the Enlightenment	SSI core requirement.
3/1/13	SSI 1 136	Urban America: Problems and Possibilities	New course. Satisfies the
3/1/13	SSI 2 136		SSI 1 core requirement. New course. Satisfies the
3/1/13	331 2 130	Suburbia: Dream or Nightmare	
3/1/13	SSI1/SSI2 132	Wild Things	SSI 2 core requirement. New course. Satisfies the
3/1/13	3311/3312 132	wild fillings	SSI core requirement.
3/1/13	SSI1/SSI2 134	The Liminal World: The Intersection	New course. Satisfies the
3/1/13	5511/5512 154	of Dreams and Desire	SSI core requirement.
3/6/13	SSI 1 127	"Why Beethoven?"	New course. Satisfies the
<i>U, 0,</i> 10		, and Decime verification	SSI 1 core requirement.
3/6/13	SSI 1 131	Agons of Athens	New course. Satisfies the
			SSI 1 core requirement.
3/6/13	SSI 2 131	Democratic Labors in Athens and	New course. Satisfies the
		America	SSI 2 core requirement.
3/7/13	SSI 1 141	Architectures of Power	New course. Satisfies the
			SSI 1 core requirement.
3/7/13	SSI 1 172	The Scientific and Romantic	New course. Satisfies the
0.17.4.0	007.4.450	Revolutions	SSI core requirement.
3/7/13	SSI 1 173	The Posthuman Future	New course. Satisfies the
2/7/12	0011/0010	TI 1 1 D III 1	SSI core requirement.
3/7/13	SSI1/SSI2	Theatre and Comedy: Drama, History, and Theory from Aristophanes to the	New course. Satisfies the
		Absurd	SSI core requirement.
3/7/13	SSI1/SSI2 150	Exploring Bioethics Today	New course. Satisfies the
3/ // 13	5511/5512 150	Exploring Blocumes Today	SSI core requirement.
3/8/13	ACAD 201	Major Exploration and Decision	New course. Available
2, 3, 22			through the Office of
			Academic Advising.
3/8/13	ACAD 201	Major Exploration and Decision	New course.
3/8/13	ALC 315	Modern Chinese Literature	New course.
3/8/13	ART 399	Special Topics in Art History	New course.
3/8/13	BIOL 362	Nanobiology	New course. Prerequisite:
			BIOL 101, 111 or 112;

			CHEM 110 or 115, and PHYS 111 or 121
3/8/13	CHEM 333	Environmental Analytical Chemistry	New course.
3/8/13	HUM 290	World of Film	New title: Introduction to Cinema Studies. New description.
3/8/13	PG 535	Religion and U.S. Politics	New course. Prerequisite: PG 101.
3/8/13	SSI 1 133	Not Just Fun and Games: Sport and Society in the Americas	New course. Satisfies the SSI 1 core requirement.
3/8/13	STS 301	Technology and Culture	New description.
3/8/13	THTR 323	Projects in Dramaturgy: Moments of Knowing	New section of THTR 323.
3/12/13	CHEM 356	Organic Synthesis	New course. Prerequisite: CHEM 251.
3/12/13	EXSC 221	Human Physiology	New prerequisites: BIOL 111, CHEM 110/120 or 115/230, and EXSC 222.
3/12/13	EXSC 330	Sport Nutrition and Ergogenic Aids	New prerequisite: EXSC 221, 222, and 301.
3/12/13	MUS 493	African American Music in the Concert Hall	New course. Prerequisite: MUS 230 and 231, or permission of instructor.
3/12/13	SSI 1 174	Lethal Othering: Critiquing Genocidal Prejudice	New course. Satisfies the SSI 1 core requirement.
3/12/13	SSI1/SSI2 137	The Boer War and South African Society	New course. Satisfies the SSI core requirement.
3/13/13	PHIL 393	The Cognitive Foundations of Morality and Religion	New course. Satisfies the Connections core requirement.
3/13/13	SPAN 110	Accelerated Elementary Spanish	New course.
3/15/13	CONN 303	Art-Science: Inquiry into the Intersection of Art, Science, and Technology	New course. Satisfies the Connections core requirement.
3/20/13	HUM 360	Theory and Revolution in Advanced Capitalist Culture	New course.
3/21/13	PT 664	Physical Therapy Administration	New description.
3/22/13	ALC 315	Modern Chinese Literature	New title: Nation and Narrative in Modern Chinese Literature.
3/22/13	BIOL 365	Bioinformatics	New course. Prerequisite: BIOL 111, 112, and 311; 211 and 360 recommended.
3/22/13	CHEM 115/230	Integrated Chemical Principles and Analytical Chemistry	New description. New prerequisite.
3/22/13	CHEM 420	Organic Chemistry	Title change: Advanced

			Inorganic Chemistry
3/22/13	ENVR 101	Introduction to Environmental Policy and Decision Making	New title: Introduction to the Environment.
3/22/13	HIST 336	Medieval Spain: Convivencia, Conflict, or Coexistance?	New course.
3/22/13	PHYS 111/112	General College Physics	New prerequisite: PHYS 111 or 121 is a prerequisite for PHYS 112.
3/22/13	PHYS 231	Circuits and Electronics	New prerequisite: PHYS 112 or 122.
3/22/13	PHYS 305	Analytical Mechanics	New prerequisite: PHYS 122 and MATH 301(may be concurrent) or permission of instructor.
3/22/13	PHYS 351	Electromagnetic Theory	New prerequisite: PHYS 122, MATH 280, and MATH 301, may be taken concurrently.
3/22/13	PHYS 411	Quantum Mechanics	New prerequisite: PHYS 305, PHYS 351, MATH 290, and MATH 301, or permission of instructor.
3/22/13	PHYS 412	Quantum Mechanics	New prerequisite: PHYS 305, PHYS 351, MATH 290, and MATH 301, or permission of instructor.
3/22/13	PT 601	Basic Physical Therapy Skills I	New description.
3/22/13	PT 640	Physiology, Biophysics, and Application of Physical Agents	New description.
3/22/13	PT 648	Physical Therapy Across the Lifespan: Adult Pathology.	New title: Physical Therapy Across the Lifespan: Adult Systemic Pathology. New description.
3/22/13	REL 420	Law and Religion	New course.
3/22/13	SPAN 310	Special Topics in Literary and Cultural Studies: Migration Narratives.	Number and title change: SPAN 311 Migration Narratives.
3/22/13	SPAN 311	Migration Narratives	New course.
3/27/13	CSOC 235	Linguistic Anthropology	New course.
3/27/13	CSOC 380	Islam and the Media	Removed prerequisites.
3/27/13	HIST 357	From Millwrights to Microchips: Business and Technology in American History	Removed from curriculum.
3/28/13	SSI1/SSI2 134	The Liminal World: The Intersection of Dreams and Desire	New title: Dreams and Desire: The Liminal World

4/2/13	BUS 317	Leadership and Critical Thinking	New course. Open only to
			UPS Leadership cohort.
4/2/13	HIST 383	Contested Terrain: Conflict Along the	New course. Offered Fall
		U.S. – Mexico Borderlands	2013 only.
4/5/13	SSI 1 145	Issues and Controversies in Clinical	New course. Satisfies the
		Psychology	SSI 1 core requirement.
4/5/13	SSI 171	Medical Discourse and the Body	New course. Satisfies the
			SSI 1 core requirement.
4/5/13	SSI 2 141	Architectures of Power	New course. Satisfies the
			SSI 2 core requirement.
4/23/13	SSI 1 125	Geomythology of Ancient	New course. Satisfies the
		Catastrophes	SSI 1 core requirement.
5/2/13	SSI 1 175	Utopia and the Imagination	New course. Satisfies the
			SSI 1 core requirement.
5/2/13	SSI 1 176	American Autobiography from	New course. Satisfies the
		Franklin to Facebook	SSI 2 core requirement.

Appendix R: Report of the Curriculum Committee on the Proposed Latino/a Studies Minor

Original Report March 2013

The Hispanic Studies program responded to concerns raised in the report and the revised proposal was approved by the full Curriculum Committee on May 02, 2013 with the exception of LS 401; revisions of this capstone course will be evaluated by the Associate Deans' office.

I write to thank you for your most recent submission of the Latina/o Studies minor proposal and to provide you with our response. We are unanimous in our support for the idea of a Latina/o Studies minor at Puget Sound and we hope to be helpful by moving forward in a way that increases the probability of the LS minor's long-term success. We have commendations and concerns to share with you. I'll begin with our commendations.

Commendations

We now see the curricular rationale for a LS minor more clearly and we are encouraged that such a minor could be useful and popular.

We found your rationale for the differences between the Latin American Studies minor and the Latina/o Studies minor compelling. The difference in language requirements is a key distinction that made sense to us.

We also appreciated your answer to our question about language use in the LS courses. We admired the ways in which you will facilitate and encourage the use of Spanish without the type of direct instruction typically found in a language course.

We found LS 300 to be carefully constructed.

Concerns

While we believe this proposal has merit, we don't believe that it includes sufficient detail to justify implementing the LS minor in Fall 2013. We believe that Spring 2014 or even Fall 2014 is more realistic for the initial implementation of the LS minor. Launching the minor prematurely could ultimately undermine its success. We recommend that more time be taken to work through program logistics before seeking approval from the Curriculum Committee. In what follows I articulate what we think needs to be done.

- Develop coursework that distinctly serves the LS minor. The current course offerings are so closely aligned with LAS and Hispanic Studies that LS is not yet distinctive. Taking some time to refine and develop courses will serve you well. Part of our job is to assess the coherence of the proposed program of study, and we cannot do that by examining courses that serve as placeholders for others or for significant modifications to content to classes that sometimes contain LS material and sometimes do not that will come later.
- While we appreciate that LS 400 cannot be fully fleshed out because it is a special topics course, we need more information about the course structure regardless of topic. For example, you might tell us what type of assignments you envision requiring in this course. How does LS 400 build on what was learned by students in earlier courses? What makes this course a 400 level course?
- Address the issue that students with a LAS minor could obtain a LS minor with the addition of two courses. Departments across campus establish rules to ensure that students invest equally in each major or minor that they earn. Some departments require students to choose one course of study or another or another (consider that Business students must choose either General Business or International Business). While such a forced choice approach is not the only way to address this, you should develop some way to assure that students who exit from a minor have learned all that the additional designation on their transcript implies.
- Significantly modify LS 401. You write that the course will be conducted in an independent study format. The experience of students in an independent study is vastly different from the experience of students in the context of a senior seminar. Running LS 401 in an independent study format suggests (in our reading) that the students will miss the rich exchanges that are possible as they work with others in a course, even if the others are having different experiences. If you envision interactions between students to enrich each other's learning by sharing their experiences, it would be valuable to mention them in the syllabus. In addition, it would be helpful to understand why the program has chosen an independent study-format capstone for the minor, rather than a seminar-style format. What are the pedagogical goals of this choice, and how do they fit into the overall pedagogical arc of the minor?

Additionally, meeting with students individually typically works well with a small group

(one or two students in our experience). However, as the program expands, meeting regularly with several students could quickly overwhelm a professor. In terms of logistics, what are your projections about when you will need to start offering 401? Do you anticipate a maximum number of students who can enroll in 401anygiven semester? Consider how you will meet the needs of the students and of the professor as the popularity of LS 401 grows.

We are comfortable with requiring students to engage with the larger community as part of their capstone experience. However, as with other courses, to approve this course we need to know more specifics: the sorts of things the students will read, the learning objectives the instructor has for the course, and what the students will do as they work up to their research paper.

We recognize that given the amount of work you have already contributed to this effort, this response might be disappointing and difficult to read. That is not our intent. We want to be encouraging. Let me reiterate that we are supportive of your goal of creating a Latina/o minor and we appreciate the amazing amount of work you have put into this program during what we assume has been a very busy first year at Puget Sound. We believe that this proposal and this new minor can be successful with time to develop it more fully and address the concerns we have articulated above. If it would benefit you, we are willing to meet with you as a group or individually to help you think through our responses and move this project forward.

Appendix S: Memo from the First-Year Seminar Policy Subcommittee

March 30, 2012 – revised memo accepted by the Curriculum Committee on November 27, 2012.

To: Curriculum Committee

From: First-Year Seminar Policy Subcommittee (Bill Barry, Derek Buescher, Peggy Burge, Julie Christoph, Eric Orlin, Amy Spivey, Brad Tomhave, Landon Wade)

New rubrics for the first-year seminars (which will be called Seminar in Scholarly Inquiry 1 and 2) were approved by the full faculty in October 2011 and will go into effect in Fall 2013. This memo serves as a set of recommendations for academic policy and practice related to the new seminars.

This subcommittee is comprised of a subset of the faculty members and librarians who were in the Burlington Northern First-Year Seminar Working Group that crafted the new seminar rubrics, along with Landon Wade, Director of Academic Advising, and Brad Tomhave, Registrar. After soliciting input from the full faculty on these policy questions, this group met several times over the spring of 2012 to craft the following recommendations.

General recommendations

- 1. Regarding course naming and numbering, we recommend that non-departmental numbering be used for the seminars (e.g. SSI1 105, SSI2 137), but that some indication of the home department of the faculty member teaching the course should be provided either in the name of the course or in the course description that appears on the online registration system (currently Cascade).
- 2. SSI1 will be primarily offered in the fall, and SSI2 will be primarily offered in the spring. A few (e.g. two or three) off-cycle sections of each type of seminar will be offered each semester, and one or two sections of each type of seminar could be offered in the summer, as well.
- 3. If an SSI1 course and an SSI2 course are built around the same content, they should be given the same course number (SSI1 137 and SSI2 137, for example). The online registration system (currently Cascade) will prevent students from registering for SSI courses having the same number.

Recommendations pertinent to all students

- 4. Students must successfully complete SSI1 before taking SSI2.
- 5. Students who wish to drop an SSI course must obtain a drop code from the instructor and process it through the Registrar's office. This is in line with current practice for first-year seminar courses.
- 6. Students may receive credit for only one SSI1 course and only one SSI2 course. (For example, if a student does poorly in an SSI1 course, he or she may choose to take a second SSI1 course, but the second course credit and grade will replace the credit and grade from the first SSI1 course.)

Recommendations pertinent to transfer students

- 7. Transfer students may receive transfer credit for SSI1, provided that they have taken a first-year writing course that includes a significant focus on argument-based writing in an academic context. That is the minimum standard to be used by the Registrar's office in determining whether a course taken elsewhere should count for SSI1.
- 8. Transfer students may choose to count courses taken at other institutions that satisfy the requirements for SSI1 as elective credit or as credit for SSI1.
- 9. Transfer students may not normally count courses taken at other institutions toward SSI2, though are allowed to appeal for previously taken courses to be considered for this requirement.

10. Transfer students will no longer be segregated into "Transfer Sections" of the seminars in the fall term. They will be free to register for any open seminar section.

Recommendations pertinent to freshmen

11. Freshmen will continue to be placed in fall SSI1 seminars by the Registrar using the students' stated preferences, as is the current practice. In the spring, freshmen will register themselves for SSI courses during the registration period, as is the current practice.

Recommendations pertinent to faculty teaching the seminars

- 12. Faculty members are encouraged to submit proposals for both SSI1 and SSI2 using the same content but different sets of assignments. To facilitate proposals of paired SSI1 and SSI2 courses, the Curriculum Proposal Form for Core Courses should be amended to remove the Seminar in Writing and Rhetoric and the Seminar in Scholarly and Creative Inquiry check boxes. Three new check boxes should be added: "Seminar in Scholarly Inquiry 1," "Seminar in Scholarly Inquiry 2," and "Seminars in Scholarly Inquiry 1 and 2 (seminars based on the same content but with different assignments)."
- 13. Faculty proposing SSI1 and SSI2 syllabi together should submit materials for both seminars, along with a single form and a single cover letter explaining how the courses fulfill the rubric of the Core category, as well as specifically how the two syllabi differ.
- 14. When the Curriculum Committee is ready to accept proposals for the SSIs, the approved rubric should be added to the Curriculum Guidelines and Forms page on the Puget Sound Web site. It would also be helpful to add a "Frequently Asked Questions" page, at least for the transitional years of 2012-2013 and 2013-2014.
- 15. Instructors who are teaching SSI courses should include in their syllabi the learning objectives as given in the seminar rubrics.
- 16. Instructors who are teaching SSI courses should include in their syllabi a list of places for students to seek help with research and writing skills, including the Center for Writing, Learning, and Teaching and the Collins Library liaison librarians.
- 17. The Associate Deans would prefer:
 - 1. faculty not being evaluated and/or
 - 2) faculty who are tenured and/or
 - 3) faculty who have taught SSI courses recently

to teach the off-cycle seminars, since the off-cycle seminars will likely include a more challenging group of students (students who failed a previous SSI course, incoming transfer students, and so forth).

Appendix T: Report of the Curriculum Committee on the BA/BS Distinction

April, 2013

The Associate Dean's office explained that this charge comes from an accreditation agency request that we explain the distinction between the BA and BS as they occur in departments that offer both (CC Minutes, March 14, 2013).

The working group identified the Economics Department, the Chemistry Department, and the Special Interdisciplinary Major (SIM) as three places where students can earn either a Bachelor of Science of a Bachelor of Arts degree. The Physics Department recently dropped their Bachelor of Arts option.

The group first reviewed written information in the Bulletin and then contacted representatives from Economics and Chemistry to learn the distinction the departments make between the BA and BS degrees.

Written Document Review

In written documents, the Economics BA and BS require the same number of units in Economics. Students earning a BS have a more prescribed curriculum—within the 9 unit degree there is one additional required course for the BS resulting in one less elective. In addition, students earning a BS must complete the calculus sequence through multivariate (MATH 280), thereby earning two more Math units than students need to fulfill the BA requirements. Both BA and BS candidates complete a senior thesis.

The Chemistry BA and BS differ in the number of units required in Chemistry. The BS degree includes all of the courses taken by a student earning a BA degree. BS candidates also take Chemistry 330 (Instrumental Analysis) and Chemistry 490 (Senior Thesis).

In the SIM the advisor and the student recommend whether the major should be a BA or a BS and the Curriculum Committee affirms or denies that recommendation. We were unable to locate any guidelines for those proposing a SIM to help them decide if the major should be a BA or a BS. Proposers are asked to circle a recommendation, but they are not asked to provide a rationale.

Consultation with Departments

Both Economics and Chemistry representatives conceptualize Bachelor of Arts degrees as suitable for students who hope to work in industry related to the major (or in the case of Chemistry, to teach secondary school). The Bachelor of Science degrees are designed for students who intend to pursue graduate degrees in Economics or Chemistry.

As a result, BS degrees provide an additional focus on the knowledge and skills necessary to pursue graduate research in the discipline.

Recommendation

Add the following to the SIM guidelines:

"When recommending the BA or BS degree, explain your recommendation in relation to 1) the types of degrees typically awarded by the disciplines represented in your proposal, and 2) the extent to which the degree is designed to prepare you for graduate-level research in your area of study."